## Memorandum of Understanding

## between

Local 2190, Council 57

American Federation of State, County
and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO



City of Burlingame

July1, 2015 to June 30, 2018

## **Weingarten Rights**

Remember your Weingarten Rights. The Supreme Court has determined that an employee is entitled to have a union Steward during any interview/ meeting that may result in discipline. YOU must request such representation. You have the right to know the subject of the meeting and the right to consult your union Steward prior to the meeting.

Remember: it is up to <u>YOU</u> to request that your union Steward be present.

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Article	<u> Page</u>
Preamble	2
1. Recognition	
2. No Discrimination	
3. Union Security	
4. Advance Notice	
5. Stewards and Official Representatives	6
6. Personnel Files.	7
7. Salary Plan	<u>./</u>
8. Insurance and Other Benefits	9
9. Hours of Work and Standby Duty	
10.Holidays	
11.Vacations	
12.Leave Provisions	
13.Occupational, Departmental, Premium Pay & Reimbursement Provisions	27
14.Promotions.	27
15. Transfer	27
16.Layoff and Recall	
17.Resignation	27
18.Reinstatement	
19.Discipline	27
20.Grievance Procedure	
21.Concerted Activities.	31
22.City Rights	
23.Effect of Agreement	32
24.Modification	32
25.Total Agreement.	
26.New Work	32
27.Separability of Provisions	32
28.Term	
Exhibit A - Salaries	
Exhibit B – Alternative Work Schedule	
POLICY	
ELIGIBILITY	
WORK SCHEDULE	
WORK WEEK	
HOLIDAYS	
HOURS OF OPERATION	
PROGRAM CRITERIA:	
Exhibit C – FMLA Policy	48
Exhibit D – AGREEMENT TO MEET REGARDING CITY BUDGET	58

#### **Preamble**

This Memorandum of Understanding is entered into by the City of Burlingame, hereinafter designated as the "City", and the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, Local 2190, AFL CIO, hereinafter designated as the "Union", as a mutual agreement in accordance with Section 25 of those wages, hours and other terms and conditions of employment which are to be in effect during the term of this Memorandum of Understanding, for those employees working in classifications in the representative unit referred to in Appendix A Section 1 hereof of this Memorandum of Understanding.

## 1. Recognition

The City of Burlingame recognizes, as provided in the City's Employer Employee Relations Resolution, the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, Local 2190, AFL CIO, as the majority representative employee organization for the employees assigned to the following classifications listed in Appendix A, as well as such classifications as may be added to this representation unit by the City during the term of this Memorandum of Understanding.

#### 2. No Discrimination

The City agrees not to discriminate against any employee because of membership in the Union or because of any activities on behalf of the Union. Union activities shall not interfere with the normal operation of the City. Neither the City nor the Union shall discriminate for or against any employee or applicant for employment on account of actual or perceived race, color, religious creed, national origin, ancestry, citizenship status, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition (cancer-related or genetic characteristics), marital status, registered domestic partner status, gender, gender identity or gender expression, age (40 or over), sex, or sexual orientation (including heterosexuality, homosexuality, or bisexuality).

## 3. Union Security

Agency Shop

Effective 01/01/2016, consistent with the provisions of the California Government Code, Section 3502.5, an employee covered by this agreement shall either: (1) become a member of the Union and pay regular Union dues, or (2) pay to the Union an agency (representation) fee as permitted by law, or (3) present to the Union and

the City's Human Resources Director a written declaration that he or she is a member of a bona fide religion, body, or sect that has historically held conscientious objections to joining or financially supporting public employee organizations. The employee who qualifies for this exemption shall, in lieu of dues or the agency shop fees payment, pay an amount equal to the agency shop fees to one of the following non-religious, non-labor charitable organizations listed below:

- (a) Gardner Family Health Network, Inc., Alviso, CA;
- (b) Sequoia Hospital Foundation, Redwood City, CA or
- (c) Community Gate Path Boys & Girls Clubs of North San Mateo County, South San Francisco, CA.

An employee who claims such exemption must submit to the Union and to the City a letter signed by an official of the bona fide organization certifying that person's membership.

Proof of the payments shall be made on a monthly basis to the Human Resources Director as a condition of continued exemption from the requirement of financial support to the public employee organization.

If the employee fails to provide such proof, the employee will be required to pay the agency fee.

#### **Fee Deduction**

If any employee in a classification covered by this MOU fails to authorize one of the above deductions within thirty (30) calendar days of date of hire or within thirty (30) calendar days' notice of the provisions of this agency shop, the City shall deduct the agency fee from the employee's paycheck. The City shall determine the timing of such automatic deductions. The requirement that employees who are not members of the Union pay this representation agency fee shall remain in effect until the earlier of: (1) expiration of this Agreement; (2) termination of the Agency Shop clause by action of the bargaining unit; or (3) legislation invalidating the manner in which Agency Shop was adopted. In the event that employees in the representation unit vote to rescind Agency Shop, the provisions of Section 3.3 – Maintenance of Membership shall apply to dues-paying members of the Union.

#### **Maintenance of Membership**

All employees who are members of AFSCME and who are tendering periodic dues through dues deductions from their paycheck, and all employees who become members of AFSCME and who tender periodic dues through dues deductions from their paycheck, shall continue to pay dues for the duration of this MOU and each subsequent MOU thereafter.

For a period of sixty (60) calendar days prior to the expiration of the current MOU, any employee who is a member of AFSCME and who tender periodic and thirty (30) calendar days from Council ratification, any employee who is a member of AFSCME shall have the right to withdraw from the Union by discontinuing dues deduction. Said withdrawal shall be communicated by the employee during that period of time in writing to the Union and the Human Resources Director; such written communication shall be delivered by certified mail and must be postmarked during the sixty calendar day period. An employee who so withdraws from Union membership shall still be subject to the provisions of Agency Shop.

#### **Payroll Deduction**

The Union may have the regular dues of its members within the representation unit deducted from employees' paychecks under procedures prescribed by the City for such deductions. Dues deductions shall be made only upon signed authorization from the employee upon a form furnished by AFSCME and distributed by the City, and shall continue until: (1) such authorization is revoked, in writing, by the employee pursuant to the provisions of this Section 3.4; or (2) the transfer of the employee out of the representation unit.

The Union shall notify the City at least thirty (30) days in advance of any change in its dues and fees.

Employees may authorize dues deductions only for the organization certified as the recognized employee organization of the unit to which the employees are assigned.

If, after all other involuntary and insurance premium deductions are made in any pay period, the balance is not sufficient to pay the deduction of Union dues, agency fee, or charity fee required by this Section, no such deduction shall be made for the current pay period.

The provisions of Section 3.3.1 above shall not apply during periods that an employee is separated from the representation unit, but shall be reinstated upon the return of the employee to the representation unit. For the purpose of this section, the term separation includes transfer out of the representation unit, layoff, and leave of absence without pay. Effective 1/1/16, employees may voluntarily elect to have contributions deducted through payroll at a minimum of two dollars (\$2.00) per month, deducted from their pay checks under the procedures prescribed by the City for the Public Employees Organized to Promote Legislative Equality Fund (PEOPLE of AFSCME). Such

deductions shall be made only upon signed authorization from the employee and shall continue until such authorization is revoked in writing.

#### **Union Obligations**

The Union shall provide the City with a copy of the Union's Hudson Procedure for the determination and protest of its agency fees. The Union shall provide a copy of said Hudson Procedure to every agency fee payer covered by this Memorandum of Understanding and annually thereafter, and as a condition to any percentage change in the agency fee.

The Union will supply the City with deduction authorization forms and/or membership applications as well as other informational materials it wishes to be distributed to new employees.

The Union shall comply with Government Code Section 3502.5(f). In addition, the Union shall comply with Government Code Section 3502.5(d) in compliance with the Agency Shop agreement. .

The Union shall refund to the City any amount paid to it in error upon presentation of supporting evidence.

#### **City Obligations**

Any new employees hired into positions covered by this Memorandum of Understanding shall be provided by the City and shall execute an "Employee Authorization for Payroll Deduction" form selecting one of the following: (1) Union dues; (2) agency fee; or (3) if he/she qualifies pursuant to the requirements of Section 3.1 above, a fee equal to agency fee payable to one of four negotiated charities.

All dues and service fee deductions shall be transmitted to Council 57 in an expeditious manner.

All transmittal checks shall be accompanied by documentation which denotes the employee's name, employee ID number, amount of deduction and member or agency fee payer status.

The City shall hand out agreed upon Union materials along with Agency Shop forms.

<u>Hold Harmless</u> - The Union shall indemnify, defend, and hold the City harmless against any and all claims, demands, suits, orders, or judgments, or other forms of liability that arise out of or by reason of this Union Security section, or any action taken or not taken by the City under this Section 3. This includes, but is not limited to, the City Attorney's fees and costs.

<u>Use of Facilities</u> - The Union may, with the prior approval of the City Manager, or his/her designee, use City facilities during non-work hours for meetings of City employees provided space is available, and provided further such meetings are not used for organizational activities or membership drives of City employees.

**Equipment** - The use of City equipment other than items normally used in the conduct of business meetings, such as desks, chairs and blackboards, is strictly prohibited, the presence of such equipment in approved City facilities notwithstanding.

<u>Bulletin Boards</u> - The Union may use portions of City bulletin boards under the following conditions:

A copy of all materials posted on bulletin boards must be provided in advance to the Human Resource Director. All materials must be dated and must identify the organization that published them.

The City reserves the right to determine where bulletin boards shall be placed.

Materials cannot be of a political nature and cannot be derogatory in any manner.

<u>List of Employees</u> - The City shall furnish the Union with the names, classifications and date of hire of employees assigned to classifications in the bargaining unit; provided, however, the City shall not be required to provide such information in any format other than one already utilized by the City.

The City shall notify the Union of the name, classification and date of hire of each new employee appointed to a position covered by this MOU. Notice shall be provided to the Union within thirty (30) days of hire.

**Right to Representation** - Any employee who is required to meet with a supervisor or management official and who reasonably expects that the meeting may involve questioning leading to potential disciplinary action shall have the right to have a steward or authorized Union representative present at the meeting; provided, however, such representation shall include no more than one (1) City employee in addition to the employee being disciplined. The limitations of this Section shall apply to employees on paid release time and not to Union staff or witnesses who may be necessary to the meeting.

## 4. Advance Notice

Except in cases of emergency, the Union shall be given reasonable advance written notice of any ordinance, resolution, rule or regulation directly relating to matters within the scope of representation proposed to be adopted by the City and shall be given the opportunity to meet with management representatives prior to adoption.

## 5. Stewards and Official Representatives

Access by Representatives - Reasonable access to employee work locations shall be granted officers of recognized employee organizations and their officially designated representatives, for the purpose of contacting members of the bargaining unit concerning business within the scope of representation. Such officers or representatives shall not enter any work location without the consent of the department head or the City Manager or his/her designee. Access shall be restricted so as not to interfere with the normal operations of the department or with established or security requirements.

- **5.2** <u>Activities Prohibited</u> Solicitation of membership and activities concerned with the internal management of an employee organization such as collecting dues, holding membership meetings, campaigning for office, conducting elections and distributing literature shall not be conducted during on-duty hours.
- **5.3** <u>Designation of Representatives</u> The Union shall be allowed to designate in writing to the City Manager or his/her designee a reasonable number of Stewards not to exceed four (4) unless prior authorization is received by the Human Resources Director. Stewards shall be granted release time without loss of time or pay for the purposes of investigating and handling grievances. Steward release time shall be scheduled by mutual agreement between the employee and the employee's immediate supervisor.

**Steward Release Time for Bargaining** — The City will provide paid release time for a maximum of four (4) Union Officers and/or Union Stewards for the participation in contract negotiations. The release time paid by the City will not be in excess of any normal hours worked or generate any overtime payments.

**New Employee Orientation** — As part of the City's new employee orientation program or the earliest time available, the Union shall have fifteen (15) minutes to provide information and answer questions of new employees who are employed in classifications which are covered by this MOU.

#### **6. Personnel Files**

**Personnel Records** - If there has been no recurrence of conduct forming the basis of a letter or record of disciplinary action, after one year the employee may request that a letter be placed in the file reflecting the correction of conduct. Placement of such letter into the employee's personnel file must be approved by the department head.

Access to Personnel File – An employee or, upon presentation of an original signed written authorization from an employee, an employee's representative shall have access to the employee's personnel file.

## 7. Salary Plan

#### **Salary Adjustments**

Effective the first payroll period in July 2015, represented classifications shall be increased by 3.0%.

Effective the first payroll period in July 2016 salaries for the represented classifications shall be increased by 3.0%.

Effective the first payroll period in July 2017 salaries for the represented classifications shall be increased by 3.0%.

**Base Salary** - Employees occupying a position in a classification covered by this Memorandum shall be paid a base salary within the range established for that position's classification.

**Placement Within Range** - The salary for a new employee entering City employment shall be the minimum salary step for the classification to which the employee is appointed unless the City determines that appointment to another step is in the best interests of the service.

**Progression Within Range** - Each employee who is employed shall receive a salary increase to the next higher step within the range of the assigned classification upon the anniversary of the individual employee's original employment date. A step increase shall only be denied for cause. Each employee who is promoted shall receive a salary increase to the next higher step within the range of the assigned classification upon the anniversary date of the individual's promotion date. A step increase shall only be denied for cause.

**Adjustments to Salary Range** - Salary range adjustments for a classification will not set a new salary anniversary date for employees serving in that classification.

**Retention of Step** - Whenever the schedule of compensation for a classification is revised, each incumbent in a position to which the revised schedule applies shall be paid at the same step in the revised range as the step at which the employee was paid in the previous range.

**Salary Step on Promotion** - When employees are promoted, they shall normally receive the first step in the salary range for their new position. However, if such step results in a salary increase of less than five percent (5%), they shall receive a minimum of five percent (5%) increase.

**Salary Step on Demotion** - When an employee is demoted, that employee's compensation shall be adjusted to the salary which most closely approximates the employee's salary in the higher classification; provided, in no event shall that new salary be above the fifth (5th) step of the lower classification. If a vacancy exists in a position in a lower classification, an employee who has previously held that vacant position, may voluntarily choose to demote to fill the vacancy.

<u>Paychecks</u> - Employees shall be paid biweekly. Routine paychecks shall be for the purpose of compensating for regular and overtime hours. Other compensation or reimbursement shall be separately identified and shall not include withholding for tax purposes, except as required by law.

**Work in a Higher Classification** - Practices and procedures vary by department for this bargaining unit; the pay for working out of classification should, however, be no less than 5% above the employee's current salary rate.

## 8. Insurance and Other Benefits

#### 8.1 Medical Plans

8.1.1 The City's monthly contribution for the individual employee and the employee's eligible dependents shall be One Hundred and Twelve dollars (\$122.00) per month effective January 1, 2015 (January 1, 2016 the amount will increase to \$125.00 per month) and shall adjust in accordance with the Minimum Employer Contribution (MEC) established by the Public Employees Medical and Hospital Care Act.

In addition, the City shall offer an Internal Revenue Code Section 125 Plan that contains the components of benefit allowance, premium conversion, health care reimbursement account, and dependent care reimbursement account.

## Effective January 1, 2015

The City shall contribute the below-listed amount per month toward each employee's Section 125 Plan benefit allowance components. All contributions listed below include the Minimum Employer Contribution (MEC):

Employee Only: Up to 92.5% of the selected medical plan up to a maximum of 92.5% of the Blue Shield HMO rate for Employee only Employee Plus One: Up to 92.5% of the selected medical plan up to a maximum of 92.5% of the Blue Shield HMO rate for Employee plus one

Employee Plus Two or more: Up to 92.5% of the selected medical plan up to a maximum of 92.5% of the Blue Shield family rate

An employee may use any benefit allowance stated above toward the cost of employer-provided PERS Health insurance for the employee and eligible dependents. An employee may not use the benefit allowance for other reasons.

Any Employee that enrolls in a Medical Plan that has a higher premium than the City's contribution, as stated above, will pay the difference. The City will comply with IRS Tax Code regulations

#### Medical Plan Waiver

Effective July 1, 2015, any Employee that provides proof they have medical insurance from a spouse or registered domestic partner, which is not provided through the City, will receive three hundred and fifty dollars (\$350) per month in lieu of Medical Benefits. The three hundred and fifty dollars (\$350) per month may be put into a Deferred Compensation, Section 125 Plan, or taken in cash. The City will comply with IRS Tax Code for medical plan waivers

#### 8.2 <u>Retiree Medical Benefits</u>

8.2.1 Retiree Medical for Employees Hired Prior to March 31, 2008 Employees hired prior to March 31, 2008 who retire prior to August 1, 2012 with a minimum of five (5) years of service with the City will receive a retiree medical benefit equivalent to the amount necessary for actual enrollment in single, two-party, or family coverage, up to a maximum dollar amount of the Kaiser family premium rate.

# 8.2.2 Retiree Medical for Employees Hired Prior to March 31, 2008 and Retire on or after August 1, 2012

Effective August 1, 2012, employees hired prior to March 31, 2008, who retire from the City with 5 years of City service, will receive a retiree medical benefit in accordance with the following:

For eligible retirees who are under the age of 65, the City contribution will be equivalent to the Bay Area Region premiums for Blue Shield Access HMO Single, Kaiser Two-Party, or Kaiser Family coverage as applicable. For eligible retirees who are 65 years of age or older and enrolled in Medicare, the City contribution will be equivalent to the premium for the average of Kaiser, Blue Shield Access HMO and PERS Choice for the Bay Area Region Single, Two-Party, or Family Medical coverage as applicable.

# 8.2.3 Retiree Medical for Employees Hired after March 31, 2008, but before January 1, 2012

Employees hired after March 31 2008, but before January 1, 2012 who retire with a minimum of five (5) years of service with the City will receive a retiree medical benefit equivalent to the amount necessary for actual enrollment in single, two-party, or family coverage, up to a maximum dollar amount of the Kaiser family premium rate. Upon conversion to a

flexible benefit plan structure, the retiree medical benefit will be less the PERS required MEC.

New employees hired on or after the effective date of the 2.5% at 55 retirement formula will receive a retiree medical benefit based on years of service with the City as follows:

10 years of service = an amount equal to 100% of employee only lowest cost premium, less PERS required MEC

15 years of service = an amount equal to 75% of employee + 1 lowest cost premium, less PERS required MEC

20 years of service = an amount equal to 100% of employee + 1 lowest cost premium, less PERS required MEC

# 8.2.4 Retiree Medical for Employees Hired On or After January 1, 2012

Employees hired on or after January 1, 2012 shall receive the following contributions to a Retirement Health Saving Account, based on years of service with the City, in lieu of the Retiree Medical Benefits in Section 8.2.1, 8.2.2, 8.2.3 Retiree Medical.

Years of Service	Monthly Contribution
prefista administration of the asomological	The City intervalor leave
0- to the end of the 5th year of service	0.0%
6 years of service to the end of the 19 <sup>th</sup> year of service	2.0% of Step E of the Police Officer Classification
20 years of service or more	2.5% of Step E of the Police Officer Classification

The City will implement an Irrevocable Trust for all new contributions towards the City's GASB 45 obligations.

#### 8.3 <u>Dental Plan</u>

Effective January 1, 2016, and each calendar year thereafter, the City will reimburse up to \$1900 per year per employee for dental expenses and \$1000 per dependent, not to exceed \$2500 cumulative per year for all eligible dependents.

#### 8.4 Vision Care Plan

Effective January 1, 2016 and each calendar year thereafter, the maximum reimbursement for an employee for vision eligible expenses is six hundred dollars (\$600) annually, not including an eye examination. If an eye examination is performed, the maximum reimbursement is one hundred dollars (\$100) per calendar year. The maximum cumulative reimbursement for vision eligible expenses for eligible dependents shall not exceed three hundred dollars (\$350) per calendar year, including eye examinations.

#### 8.5 Life Insurance

- 8.5.1 <u>Effective 01/01/02</u> the City provides life insurance to the extent of seventy five thousand dollars (\$75,000) coverage for members of the bargaining unit.
  - 8.5.2 <u>Effective 01/01/02</u> the City provides employee-paid supplemental life insurance at group rates for employee and spouse.

#### 8.6 **Disability Insurance Plans**

8.6.1 <u>State Disability Insurance</u> - During the term hereof, the City agrees to provide State Disability Insurance (SDI) for employees in the bargaining unit. The employees will pay for such insurance through automatic payroll deduction.

The City integrates leave balances with SDI benefits, starting with Sick Leave, upon employee request.

<u>Long-Term Disability Insurance</u> - The City will provide long-term disability insurance to all AFSCME members, with a sixty (60) day waiting period. Monthly benefits shall be 60% of employee's basic monthly earnings up to a maximum monthly benefit of three thousand five hundred dollars (\$3,500). The City integrates leave balances with LTD benefits, starting with Sick Leave, upon employee request.

- 8.6.2 <u>Paid Family Leave</u> Upon ratification and Council approval of the agreement, the City will allow unit members to use applicable accrued leave times to meet the one (1) week waiting period required
- 8.6.3 Long Term Disability Insurance The City will provide long term disability insurance to all AFSCME members, with a sixty (60) day waiting period. Monthly benefits shall be 60% of employee's basic monthly earnings up to a maximum monthly benefit of three thousand five hundred dollars (\$3,500). The City integrates leave balances with LTD benefits, starting with Sick Leave, upon employee request.

8.6.4 <u>Insurance Coverage While Disabled</u> - The City will allow any employee who has been disabled and is collecting benefits under the Long-Term Disability Plan, or under State Disability Insurance, to participate in the health insurance plan by payment of premium cost to the City, except as otherwise required by the Family and Medical Leave Act.

#### 8.7 <u>Deferred Compensation</u>

- 8.7.1 Participation Full-time regular employees are eligible, subject to IRS regulations and the terms and conditions thereof, to participate in the deferred compensation plan made available to all City employees.
- 8.7.2 Deferred Compensation Incentive -The City shall continue to provide a contribution to an employee's deferred compensation account in an amount equal to the employee's contribution, to a maximum of forty-five dollars (\$45) per biweekly pay period. This shall not imply any City endorsement or responsibility for the performance of any deferred compensation account or instrument selected by the employee.
- **8.8** <u>Section 125/Flexible Benefit Plans</u> Effective 01/01/02, the City offers employees IRS Section 125 plans for reimbursable dependent care and healthcare costs for employees
- **8.9** Plan Description Benefit Plan Descriptions are available upon request in the City's Human Resources Office.

#### Retirement

#### **CalPERS Retirement Provisions**

- a) Effective 03/31/2008, the City implemented the provisions of the PERS 2.5% at Age 55 retirement benefit for miscellaneous employees hired on or before 12/31/13 (Classic Employees)
- b) Effective the first payroll in January 2013, employees contribute 1.0 % of the employer's contribution for the CalPERS retirement costs via payroll deduction on a pre-tax basis. The City shall "pick-up" the employer contribution amount that is being paid by the employees through a payroll reduction under IRS Code Section 414(h)(2).

#### 8.11 Continuation of City Insurance Contributions

During the term of this Memorandum, the City agrees to pay for increases in the premiums for insurance, as described herein, up to the dollar amounts listed above. Upon expiration of this Memorandum, the City will

continue paying the dollar amount of premiums then being paid, unless and until there is an agreement to pay a higher amount, or the City Council takes unilateral action in the absence of agreement.

**Physical Fitness** - The City provides a fifty 50% discount to employees who take physical fitness classes through the Burlingame Recreation Department. After registration is complete, employees will be able to fill vacant slots at the discounted rate.

Employees may utilize the fitness center located at the City's Corporation Yard.

Regular Part-Time Benefitted Employee Benefits: Insurances and Other Benefits — Regular part-time benefitted employees shall be entitled to insurance coverage and other benefits as follows:

<u>Medical Insurance</u> - City payment of medical insurance premiums as provided in the Insurance and Other Benefits section of the MOU.

<u>Life Insurance</u> - Effective 07/01/01, the City will provide life insurance coverage of thirty-five thousand dollars (\$35,000).

Other Benefits – Regular part-time benefitted employees will be covered by State Disability Insurance (SDI).

<u>Voluntary Coverages</u> – Regular part-time benefitted employees may enroll in the City's long term disability insurance, supplemental life insurance, dental plan, vision plan, deferred compensation and/or the Section 125 plan. Voluntary coverage enrollment is subject to plan provisions. The employee must request in writing to the employer his/her desire to enroll and pay applicable premiums.

<u>Leaves</u> – Accrual, Limits and Adjustments - Effective 07/01/01 the City provides all regular part-time benefitted employees with the same vacation, sick leave, holiday leave and accrual limits that apply to regular full time employees will be pro-rated according to each employee's percentage of full-time employment. At the end of each fiscal year, leave accruals will be adjusted to reflect the actual hours worked in the fiscal year. The City will stop all paid leave accruals when an employee goes on an unpaid status; unless otherwise provided by law.

<u>Work On A Holiday</u> – All regular part-time employees who work on a holiday shall be compensated in the same manner as a full-time employee.

## 9. Hours of Work and Standby Duty

**Work Schedule and Adjustments** - The regular work week for employees occupying full time positions shall consist of five (5) consecutive eight (8) hour workdays beginning on Monday at the regularly

scheduled starting time for employee's respective department. If the City adjusts a shift starting time for a specific temporary assignment, the employee shall have the choice of overtime or time off for the shift adjustment. Exceptions to this Section may be made by mutual agreement between the City and the Union.

**Lunch and Breaks** - A one (1) hour or one-half (1/2) hour unpaid lunch period shall be observed each day. Two (2) fifteen (15) minute rest break with pay shall be observed during each workday; one in the first half and one in the second half of the workday.

#### **Overtime**

9.3.1 Definition and Compensation - Authorized work performed in excess of forty (40) hours in one (1) week and/or eight(8) with a 9/80 or 4/10 in a work day shall constitute overtime. Employees schedule will only receive overtime in excess of their normal shift. An employee required to work in excess of the regularly scheduled hours of work, shall be compensated for time worked at the rate of one-half (1-1/2) times the employee's regular straight-time one and rate of pay, except that all hours worked in excess of twelve (12) in any workday shall be compensated at two (2) times the employee's regular straight-time rate.

<u>Assignment of Overtime</u> - Whenever possible, overtime shall be assigned on a volunteer basis. However, if there are no qualified volunteers, overtime shall be assigned according to reverse order of seniority by classification.

- 9.3.3 <u>Water Division Overtime:</u> Overtime shall be assigned on a volunteer basis. However, if there are no qualified volunteers, overtime shall be assigned according to reverse seniority by rotation.
- 9.3.4 Relief Time If an employee is required to work overtime for four (4) or more hours of the eight (8) hours immediately preceding the start of the employee's regular shift, then paid relief time shall be granted by the supervisor up to a maximum of four (4) consecutive hours at the end or beginning of the next regularly scheduled shift. The extent of relief granted and the timing of such relief time are within the discretion of the supervisor.
- 9.3.5 <u>Choice of Compensation</u> Payment for overtime work will be either cash or compensatory time off at the employee's option. In no event shall payment for overtime be less than the rates established in this Section.
- 9.3.6 <u>Compensatory Time Maximum</u> Employees may accumulate a maximum of one hundred thirty (130) hours of compensatory time off, which may be used at times chosen by the employee and approved by the appropriate supervisor; in meeting the needs of City business.

Callback — An employee recalled to work outside of and not continuous with regularly scheduled hours shall be paid a minimum of two (2) hours at the rate of one and one-half (1½) times the employee's regular straight-time rate of pay. An employee shall be considered on the job from the time he/she leaves home until returning to his/her home. The minimum of two (2) hours shall apply to the first call back and to any subsequent call back after two (2) hours has expired from the original call. For purposes of this Section 10.4 an employee shall be on call back status if a request for work is made (5) minutes or more after his/her regularly scheduled hours.

#### Standby

**General Provisions** – An employee will be considered on standby duty only when assigned to answer calls outside of regularly scheduled hours and provided a City "beeper." Employees on standby will have the option of using a City vehicle; however, such vehicle cannot be used for any private or personal purposes.

**Response Requirement** – An employee on standby should be able to respond to the Corporation Yard within thirty (30) minutes of the call. If an employee's regular residence is not within the thirty (30) minute reporting time, then the employee must place on file with the department head a written statement as to how the employee will meet the 30-minute reporting requirement when on standby.

#### **Compensation**

An employee assigned to be on standby shall receive two (2) hours pay at the straight-time rate for each weeknight of standby time. Standby on Saturday or Sunday shall be compensated at eight (8) hour pay at one and one-half ( $1\frac{1}{2}$ ) time the employee's regular rate of pay for each day of standby worked.

Night standby on weekends or holidays will be compensated by two (2) hours at the straight-time rate. Standby on any holiday shall be compensated by (8) hours at one and one-half ( $1\frac{1}{2}$ ) times the employee's regular rate of pay in addition to holiday pay. Standby on Saturdays, Sundays or Holidays, for which eight (8) hours pay at one and one-half ( $1\frac{1}{2}$ ) time regular pay is received, is understood to be time spent on duty at the Corporation Yard.

<u>Implementation</u> – the City will adopt reasonable regulations in order to implement the above provisions.

<u>Compliance</u> – Failure to comply with the thirty (30) minute rule will result in discipline and automatic loss of standby privileges.

## 10. Holidays

**Holiday Pay** - Regular full-time employee shall be entitled to observe all authorized holidays at full pay, not to exceed eight (8) hours for any one (1) day.

**<u>Holidays Listed</u>** - The following are the authorized holidays:

New Year's Day January 1<sup>st</sup>

Martin Luther King's 3<sup>rd</sup> Monday in January

**Birthday** 

Washington's Birthday 3<sup>rd</sup> Monday in February

Memorial Day Last Monday in May

Independence Day July 4<sup>th</sup>

Labor Day 1<sup>st</sup> Monday in September

Admission Day September 9<sup>th</sup>

Columbus Day 2<sup>nd</sup> Monday in October

Veteran's Day November 11<sup>th</sup>

Thanksgiving Day 4<sup>th</sup> Thursday in November

Day after Thanksgiving 4<sup>th</sup> Friday in November

Christmas Day December 25<sup>th</sup>

Two floating holidays per calendar year

**Observance** - If a holiday falls on a Sunday, such holiday shall be observed on the Monday following. If a holiday falls on a Saturday, such holiday shall be observed on the preceding Friday. For the purposes of this Article 11, unit members shall be entitled to fourteen (14) holidays per calendar year.

**Work on a Holiday** - Any employee who is required to work on a holiday specified above shall, in addition to receiving regular pay for the holiday and will be paid one and one-half (1-1/2) times the employee's regular rate of pay for all hours worked on the holiday.

Work on New Years Day, July 4<sup>th</sup>, Thanksgiving or Christmas Day

– Any employee who is required to work on New Year's Day, July 4<sup>th</sup>,
Thanksgiving and/or Christmas Day shall in addition to receiving regular
pay for the holiday, will be paid two (2) times the employee's regular rate
of pay for all hours worked on New Year's Day, July 4<sup>th</sup>, Thanksgiving Day
and/or Christmas Day.

<u>Vacation</u> - In the event any of the holidays specified below occurs while an employee is on vacation, the holiday shall not be charged to vacation.

#### 11. Vacations

Represented employees shall be entitled to vacation pay in accordance with the following provisions:

**<u>Eligibility</u>** – Eligibility to schedule accrued vacation allowance shall start as soon as vacation is accrued, based on Supervisor approval.

**11.2 Vacation Accrual** - Vacation shall be accrued as follows:

Anniversary Date	Days Per Year	Hours Per Pay period
Hire to 4th	10	3.08
5 <sup>th</sup>	15	4.62
10 <sup>th</sup>	16	4.93
11 <sup>th</sup>	17	5.24
12 <sup>th</sup>	18	5.54
13 <sup>th</sup>	19	5.85
14 <sup>th</sup>	20	6.16
15 <sup>th</sup>	21	6.47
16 <sup>th</sup>	22	6.78
17 <sup>th</sup>	23	7.09
25 <sup>th</sup>	24	7.38

On an employee's 5<sup>th</sup> anniversary date of employment with the City of Burlingame, the employee will receive a one-time allotment of 40 hours of vacation in his/her vacation accrual bank.

The City will stop vacation leave accruals when an employee goes into an unpaid status.

**<u>Accrual Maximum</u>** - Employees can maintain a maximum accrual of two (2) years of vacation at any time.

**Scheduling** - Vacations shall be scheduled yearly by employees with the approval of their respective Department Head or their designee. Preference in scheduling shall be based on seniority. The City will respond to vacation requests within ten (10) working days. Leave Provisions

## 12. Leave Provisions

Sick Leave - Sick leave may be used for personal illness, non-industrial disability, and care for an immediate family member and/or health care appointments that cannot be scheduled outside of normal work hours. Sick leave is for actual illness of the employee, the employees immediately family or healthcare appointments. Employees are

encouraged to accumulate sick leave in order to protect themselves in the event of an extended illness.

#### Sick Leave Accrual

Sick leave shall be accrued at a rate of eight (8) hours per month (3.69 hours per pay period) for each pay period a full-time employee is in paid status. The City will suspend sick leave accrual when an employee goes into unpaid status. The maximum sick leave accrual is 2000 hours.

#### Sick Leave Notice

In order to receive compensation while absent on sick leave, the employee shall notify the appropriate management personnel prior to the start of their regularly scheduled shift. The employee must provide the reason for the absence (personal, family illness, FMLA). The employee is required to call in each day sick leave is used; however, management personnel may waive this daily contact if it is determined to be impractical. Departments may establish specific call-in procedures based on operational need.

#### Physician's Certificate

A physician's certificate may be required when management personnel has a bonifide question about the propriety of a request for sick leave, as outlined the Sick Leave Abuse section of the MOU.

#### Sick Leave Abuse

The City recognizes that employees will need to use sick leave occasionally, and that the majority of employees do not abuse their sick leave benefits. Generally, when a pattern of abuse of sick leave is identified, the department head or supervisor shall evaluate such cases. In those cases where sick leave has been abused, appropriate corrective action including discipline up to and including termination may be taken.

Except when sick leave use is known to be in connection with long-term illness, injury, or ongoing medical condition, abuse of sick leave shall generally be defined as follows:

- a) Where an employee demonstrates a pattern of using sick leave adjacent to a regular day off or scheduled day off such as vacation or compensatory time off;
- b) Where an employee demonstrates a pattern of using sick leave within a discernible period of time after which the leave was earned;
- c) Where an employee regularly uses sick leave in excess of 64 hours per annual 12-month performance evaluation review period;

- d) Where an employee regularly uses all of their accrued sick leave which requires use of other paid leaves or unpaid leave to cover the absence;
- e) Where an employee fraudulently uses any single occurrence of sick leave, including falsifying or omitting facts or documentation regarding the illness or injury upon which the sick leave absence is based.

#### Sick Leave Upon Retirement

The City contracts with CalPERS for the credit of Unused Sick Leave. Upon retirement, unused sick leave will be reported to CalPERS and will be converted to service credit in accordance with CalPERS rules and procedures.

#### Sick Leave Integration

The City will integrate sick leave with California State Disability Insurance (SDI) benefits. The integration of sick leave with SDI will not exceed an employee's normal daily wage.

#### Leave for Sick Family Members

An employee shall be able to use up to 48 hours of annual accrued sick leave per calendar year. The definition of "immediate family" shall be spouse, children, step-children, parents, brothers, sisters, grandparents and registered domestic partner. The birth or adoption of a baby, hospital visits, and bringing the baby home is covered under this section.

#### Family Medical Leave

The City will comply with all Federal and State leave provisions.

## Catastrophic Leave

The provisions of Catastrophic Leave shall be in accordance with the City's Administrative Procedure entitled Catastrophic Leave.

**Industrial Disability Leave** - Disability leave is absence from duty granted because of a disability caused by illness or injury arising out of and in the course of his/her employment. Disability leave shall be in accordance with the provisions of the workers' compensation laws of the State of California and the benefits and allowance provided under it, except as specifically provided herein.

<u>Conditions and Duration of Leave</u> - For days of absence as a result of illness or injury arising out of and in the course of an employee's assigned duties and through no fault of his/her own, an employee shall receive disability pay for one (1) year to the extent that his/her loss of earnings is not covered by the benefits granted under the provisions of the workers'

compensation laws of the State of California, unless he/she is terminated earlier. The total amount received from Workers' Compensation benefits and disability pay shall not exceed eighty percent (80%) of the employee's regular rate of pay. The City will notify the employee that he/she has the option of using accumulated sick leave to pay the residual, and unless the employee notifies the City otherwise, the residual will be paid by use of accumulated sick leave until such time as accumulated sick leave is exhausted. Once sick leave is exhausted the employee may elect to use their accrued vacation and compensation time to supplement their pay.

<u>Modified Duty</u> - The City will attempt to provide modified duty assignments for employees who are unable to perform regular job duties due to injury or illness. Modified duty assignments will be determined in accordance with the employee's medical restrictions and at the needs of the business of the City.

Bereavement Leave - In the event of a death in an employee's immediate family, absence from duty shall be allowed and not to exceed three (3) days. In the event of the death of a relative who is not a not a member of the employee's immediate family, absence from duty shall be allowed for one (1) day. Such absences shall not be charged to the employee's sick leave balance. For the purposes of this Section, "immediate family" means father, mother, step father, step mother, husband, wife, registered domestic partner, son, daughter, step son, step daughter, sister, brother, grandparent, mother-in-law, or father-in-law of the employee.

In addition upon approval of the department head, the City will allow the employee to use up to two (2) days of sick leave, vacation leave or other accrued leave for bereavement.

<u>Leave Without Pay</u> - The City Manager may grant a regular employee a personal or medical leave of absence without pay or benefits not to exceed one (1) year. Request for such leave shall be in writing and must be approved by the City Manager. Leave requested under this Section shall not be routinely denied.

Return to Work and Reinstatement Rights —When an employee returns to work, after an approved leave, the employee shall be reinstated in the position held at the time the leave was granted.

Maternity, Parental and Adoptive Leaves — Employees may use accumulated sick leave for pregnancy related disability when the disability is certified by the employee's physician. Leave without pay shall be provided in accordance to the MOU, for purposes of postpartum care of an infant or for the adoption of a child. Employee may request, up to ten (10) days of accrued sick leave to be utilized upon the arrival of an adopted child.

**Applicable Law** - The City will comply with all Federal and State Laws pertaining to the birth and adoption of children.

<u>Military Leave</u> - Military leave shall be granted in accordance with applicable State and Federal laws.

# 13. Occupational, Departmental, Premium Pay & Reimbursement Provisions

**Training** – The City will seek to expand training availability in job related skills and certifications when applicable and appropriate within budget limitations.

#### **Safety**

#### Safety Committees

<u>Composition</u> – The Public Works Department Safety Committee shall consist of two (2) representatives from the Street and Sewer Division, two (2) representatives from the Water Division, one (1) representative of the Shop Division, (1) representative of the Facilities Division, and two (2) representatives from the City.

The Park Department Safety Committee shall consist of one (1) representative from each park crew, the Park Maintenance Leadworker, Park Supervisor, and Park Superintendent.

Meetings - Safety Committees shall meet monthly.

<u>Safety Equipment</u> – The City shall continue to supply employees with safety equipment required by the City and/or CAL-OSHA. All employees furnished such equipment shall use the equipment and their use shall only be for the purposes and uses specified under applicable safety rules and regulations.

<u>Drug/Alcohol Testing</u> – The City will be in compliance with the Federal DOT program.

<u>Safety Shoe Reimbursement</u> – Effective 07/01/15 the City shall reimburse each employee required to wear safety shoes, as determined by each department safety committee, up to three hundred dollars (\$300) per employee per fiscal year. The employee in the classification of Meter Reader is allowed reimbursement of up to three hundred dollars (\$300) two (2) times in each fiscal year.

## Tree Crew Protective Clothing

Effective 07/01/15, Tree Crew employees whose work requires special safety footwear for tree climbing shall be reimbursed up to three-hundred-seventy dollars (\$370) per fiscal year.

Effective 07/01/15 the City will provide Tree Personnel Cal-OSHA compliant clothing.

#### **Class B Licensure**

#### Class B Driver's License -

Requirement – The Union acknowledges that the City and employees must comply with state law. The City agrees to pay for required medical exams and grant reasonable work time for taking required exams.

Accommodation - The City may temporarily reassign an employee to other duties for a maximum of six (6) months if the employee has: 1) not passed a required exam for a Class B license; 2) been unable to maintain or re-qualify for the license due to medical reasons; or 3) temporarily lost use of the license for six (6) months or less.

<u>Reimbursement</u> - The City will reimburse employees for expenses associated with obtaining their Class B License, upon approval of the Public Works Superintendent or Parks Superintendent.

#### **Certification Pay**

Employees who earn and maintain a certificate that is approved by the department head or his/her designee are eligible for certification/premium pay as follows:

Class B Driver's License		\$100 per month
Water Distribution Operator, (	Grade 2	\$100 per month
Water Distribution Operator, (	Grade 3	\$100 per month
Water Distribution Operator, 0	Grade 4	\$50 per month
Mechanic Auto Service Certific	cation	\$100 per month
Water Treatment T1 Certificat	tion	\$100 per month
Collection System Grade II		\$100 per month
Collection System Grade III		\$100 per month
HVAC Certification Type I & I		\$100 per month
Qualified Applicator Certificati	on	\$100 per month
Line Clearance Certification		\$100 per month
Boiler Operations Certificate		\$100 per month
Building Operations Cert. bot	h Level I & II	\$100 per month
Bilingual Service Certification	*	\$100 per month
Agricultural Pest Control Advi	sor Certification	5% premium pay
Playground Inspector Certific	ation	5% premium pay

\*The City shall provide bilingual certification pay to employees designated as bilingual service providers. The designated employee must pass a fluency certification as a condition of receiving the certification pay.

Maximum combined compensation for the above listed certifications/premiums shall not exceed \$350 per month for any individual.

**Street Sweeper Assignment and Pay** – Employees regularly assigned to Street Sweepers shall receive premium pay of seven and one-half percent (7.5%) of base salary. Premium pay shall not be reduced for normal employee leave or equipment breakdowns. Employees regularly assigned to sweepers shall only be removed for cause or a reduction in number of sweepers.

#### **Large Crew Premium Pay**

A lead worker assigned the responsibility of directing large crews working multiple assignments in more than one location shall receive premium pay in the amount of \$100 per month. "Large Crew" is defined as six (6) or more permanent workers assigned to the lead worker on a regular basis.

#### Reimbursements

<u>Mileage Reimbursement</u> - An employee who is required to provide transportation for the performance of his/her job shall be compensated at the current IRS mileage rate. It is understood that such reimbursement does not apply to commuting by employees to or from their residence.

<u>Training and Educational Reimbursement</u> – An employee shall be reimbursed for the cost of books, supplies and tuition, and shall not lose pay for time attending class if: 1) the course is required by the City, and/or 2) the department head provides written approval prior to the taking of the course.

Expense Advance for Job-Related Training - City Administrative Procedure for job related training provides for a payment advance of 50% of the cost of tuition and required books for a class which costs \$200 or more to enroll. The balance of the cost will be reimbursed after completion of the course with a passing grade. Employees must refund all advances made by the City if the class is not completed or not passed.

#### 14. Promotion

**Filling of Vacancies** - The City Manager and/or their designee will determine if higher positions in the classified service shall be filled by promotion based on the City Rules and Regulations and the following:

The best interests of the City will be served by promoting from within.

There is a minimum of one internal candidate that meets the minimum qualifications for the promotional opportunity.

Any promotional examination shall comply with the City Rules and Regulations governing competitive examinations.

Notice of the recruitment for a promotional position will be emailed out by the Human Resources Department. The Human Resources Department will also include an email notice to the Union President of the promotional vacancy.

**Employment Lists** Employment lists shall become effective upon the approval of the Human Resources Director. Employment lists shall remain in effect for one (1) year from the date of approval, unless sooner exhausted, and may be extended, prior to their expiration dates, by approval of the Human Resources Director for up to one (1) year period, but in no event shall an employment list remain in effect for more than two (2) years. The name of any person on an employment list may be removed by the City Manager if the eligible person requests in writing that his/her name be removed, or if the employee fails to respond to a written offer of employment within five (5) business days next succeeding receipt of the mailing of the notice, which shall be by regular mail. A candidate who rejects an offer of employment shall be removed from the employment list.

<u>Time for Promotional Examinations</u> – Promotional examinations scheduled by the City during an employee's regular working hours may be taken without any loss in compensation.

<u>Probationary Period</u> - The probationary period for a new City employee shall be twelve (12) months. The probationary period for an existing employee who accepts a promotion shall be six (6) months.

**Extension** - The City may extend the probationary period for an equal period of time in case of absence of thirty (30) days or more for extended sick or accident leave.

**Rejection From Probation** - Any employee who is in a probationary status may be rejected during the probationary period without cause. Any employee who has gained permanent status and thereafter accepts a promotion may be rejected during the probationary period without cause; provided, however, said employee shall retain all other rights of a

permanent employee in the position held prior to promotion (including the right of return to the former position). Those rights can only be affected for cause.

<u>Grievance Rights</u> - An employee who believes that a promotion according to this provision has been improperly denied, may file a grievance regarding such denial. However, such grievance cannot under any circumstances be appealed beyond the level of the City Manager.

#### 15. Transfer

An employee may be transferred from one position to another position in the same or comparable classifications upon approval of the affected department heads.

## 16. Layoff and Recall

**Layoff** - Regular employees may be laid off, without prejudice, due to lack of funds or curtailment of work. No regular employee, may be separated while there are temporary employees serving in the same class or position in the City.

<u>Procedure</u> - When a department head is instructed by the City Manager to reduce the number of employees, layoff shall be made in accordance with the following rules:

<u>Order</u> - Layoffs shall be by job classification according to reverse order of seniority as defined by total City service.

<u>Displacement Rights</u> - The employees to be laid off may displace the least senior employee in the lateral or next lower classification in which he/she previously held permanent status, provided the displaced employee has less total City service.

<u>Vacancies</u> - An employee may demote or transfer to a vacant position for which he/she possesses the necessary skills as determined by the minimum qualifications and job specifications for position.

<u>Re-Employment List</u> - The name of each employee laid off shall be entered on a re-employment list in order of seniority for three (3) years.

<u>Benefits Upon Re-Employment</u> - Former employees appointed from a re-employment eligible list shall be restored all rights accrued prior to being laid off, such as but not limited to, sick leave, vacation credits, and credit for years of service. However, such re-employed employees shall not be eligible for benefits for which they received compensation at the time of or subsequent to the date they were laid off.

Notice - a minimum of fourteen (14) calendar days notice must be given to the employee prior to the date of layoff.

## 17. Resignation

Any employee wishing to resign from employment shall file with the department head a notice of intention to leave at least two (2) weeks in advance. Said notice will state the effective date of departure. Entitlement to final paycheck shall be in compliance with state and federal law.

#### 18. Reinstatement

An employee who has resigned in good standing may request reinstatement by the City Manager or designee. The employee may be reinstated to a vacant position, if it is determined to be in the best interest of the needs of the City. Following a one (1) year period after resignation, the City Manager or designee may require such employee to submit to a physical examination and to serve a new probationary period.

## 19. Discipline

<u>General</u> – The City retains the right to impose disciplinary action upon an employee of this unit; however, disciplinary action may be imposed upon any regular employee for just cause.

Types of Penalties – Disciplinary action shall be limited to:

written reprimand,

suspension from work,

demotion in class and/or pay step

termination

**Notice** – The City agrees to give any employee who is being disciplined at least ten (10) calendar days notice of such disciplinary action.

<u>Method of Reprimand</u> — If the City has reason to reprimand an employee, it shall be done in a manner that will not embarrass the employee before other employees or the public.

<u>Administrative Leave</u> — The City may also place an employee on administrative leave with pay pending an investigation into alleged misconduct.

<u>Appeal Rights</u> – Any disciplinary action or measure may be appealed in accordance with the following procedure:

Within ten (10) working days of his/her receipt of the written decision from his/her department head or designee imposing disciplinary action, an employee wishing to appeal must file such appeal in writing with the City Manager.

The City Manager shall consider the matter and render a decision within fifteen (15) working days from the date of receipt of the appeal. Upon request of the employee or his/her representative, such consideration shall include a meeting with the employee and his/her representative to receive any information or position they may wish to present.

The City Manager's decision on written reprimands and suspensions of one (1) day or less shall be final, and such matters may not be grieved or appealed beyond this level.

Within ten (10) working days of his/her receipt of the City Manager's decision, an employee wishing to appeal further must notify the Human Resources Director in writing of his/her intent to do so. Any written appeal must indicate that the employee is filing a grievance pursuant to the requirements of Section 21. Grievance Procedure Subsection 21.2.4. Arbitration.

The employee may elect only one appeal option,

not both.

**Notification of Discipline** - The City will notify the Union of any pending disciplinary action prior to such action being taken against a bargaining unit member; and if the Union does not represent the unit member in the disciplinary action, the Union will be notified of the disposition of the matter.

<u>Placement in Personnel Files</u> - An employee or, upon presentation of written authorization from the employee, an employee's representative shall have access to the employee's personnel file upon request. No written reprimand or performance evaluation shall be placed in an employee's personnel file until the employee has been given the opportunity to review and a reasonable opportunity to respond in writing to such a document.

"Written reprimand" as used herein is defined as a written communication to the employee formally notifying the employee of conduct or omission which is the basis for discipline.

#### 20. Grievance Procedure

#### **Definitions:**

"Days" as used herein shall be days when the City Hall of the City of Burlingame is open for business.

"Grievance" is any dispute over the interpretation or application of any provision of this Memorandum by any employee adversely affected thereby.

"Grievant" is an individual employee or employee organization adversely affected by any dispute over the interpretation or application of any provision of this Memorandum. It is agreed that the Union can only grieve disputes over Sections 1, 2, 3, 4, 6 and 7 of this Memorandum.

#### Steps:

<u>Step 1</u> – <u>Supervisor or Manager</u> - Grievant shall discuss the grievance with his/her appropriate management personnel within fifteen (15) days of actual or constructive knowledge of the existence of the grievance. If the issue is not resolved, grievant shall be entitled to proceed to Step 2.

<u>Step 2</u> – <u>Department Head</u> - Within ten (10) days of the conclusion of the Step 1 meeting, grievant shall file with his/her department head a written grievance setting forth the following:

Name

Classification

Supervisor

Section or Sections of the Memorandum allegedly violated

Remedy sought

Union

Within ten (10) days of receipt of the written grievance, the department head will meet with the grievant and his/her representative to reach a satisfactory resolution.

<u>Step 3 – City Manager</u> - If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1 or Step 2, it may be appealed to the City Manager within ten (10) days of the receipt of the Department Head's response at Step 2. Said appeal shall be in the form of a written request to proceed to Step 3, along with the written grievance. The City Manager or designee shall respond to the grievance within ten (10) days of receipt of the written appeal. The decision of the City Manager shall be final, except as provided in Step 4.

<u>Step 4</u> – <u>Arbitration</u> - If the grievant is not satisfied with the decision at Step 3,

within five (5) days after receipt of the Step 3 response, the grievant may request in writing that the Union submit the grievance to arbitration.

within ten (10) days of the grievant's receipt of the decision at Step 3, the Union shall inform the City in writing if its intent is to advance the grievance to arbitration.

<u>Arbitrator Selection Process</u> – If arbitration has been invoked under 21.2.4 b. above, within five (5) days of the Union notification that the grievance is being advanced to arbitration, an arbitrator shall be selected by mutual

agreement, and if no agreement on an arbitrator can be reached within that five (5) day period, the parties shall request of the State Conciliation Service a list of five (5) names of persons experienced in hearing grievances. Each party shall alternately strike a name until only one (1) name remains. The order of strike shall be determined by lot.

<u>Decision</u> - In each dispute, the arbitrator shall, as soon as possible, hear evidence and render a decision on the issues by referring to the written grievance and the answers thereto at each step. After the hearing, and after both parties have been given the opportunity to make written arguments, the arbitrator shall submit, in writing, his/her findings and award to the Union and the City.

The award of the arbitrator shall be final and binding.

Arbitrator's Authority - The arbitrator will have no power to add to, subtract from, or modify the terms of the Memorandum or the written policies, rules, regulations, and procedures of the City; nor shall the arbitrator be empowered to render a decision on issues not before the arbitrator or on facts not supported by the evidence.

Arbitration Costs - The fees and expenses of the arbitrator and each hearing shall be borne equally by the City and the Union; or if an individual pursues arbitration without the Union's consent, said individual shall share equally in the cost with the City, provided, however, that no grievance involving interpretation of this Memorandum of Understanding may be advanced to arbitration without the concurrence of the Union. All other expenses shall be borne by the party incurring them.

Questions of Arbitrability - If any question arises regarding the arbitrability of a grievance, the party raising the question of arbitrability may, upon request, have such question first ruled upon and decided by an arbitrator prior to any other hearing on the merits of the grievance, which would thereafter be conducted, by a second and different arbitrator. The fees and expenses of the separate arbitrator deciding the issue or arbitrability shall be borne by the party, which raised the question of arbitrability.

<u>Waiver of Other Remedies</u> - By submitting the grievance to arbitration, the grievant expressly waives any right to statutory remedies or to the exercise of any legal process other than as provided by this grievance/arbitration procedure. The processing of a grievance beyond Step 3 shall constitute an express election on the part of the grievant that the grievance/arbitration procedure is the chosen forum for resolving the issues contained in the grievance, and that the grievant will not resort to any other forum or procedure for resolution or review of the issues. The parties do not intend by the provisions of this paragraph to preclude the enforcement of any arbitration award in any court of competent jurisdiction.

#### **Failure to Pursue**

<u>Grievant</u> - Any failure by grievant to purse his/her grievance within the time limits to the next step shall be a voluntary abandonment of the grievance, and grievant shall not thereafter be entitled to pursue said grievance. Such settlement in favor of the City shall not prejudice the rights of the Union or other employees to pursue a similar grievance, provided all other requirements of this Memorandum are met.

<u>City</u> - Any failure by the City to respond within the time limits set forth shall entitle grievant to pursue his/her grievance to the next step.

#### **Representation and Release Time**

Grievant shall be entitled to be represented by his/her Union and/or his/her attorney at any grievance meeting or discussion described in any one (1) of the steps of the grievance procedure; provided, however, in no event shall more than one (1) City employee, in addition to grievant, attend such grievance meetings. The limitations of this Section shall apply to employees on paid release time and not to Union staff or witnesses who may be necessary to the grievance.

Neither grievant nor his/her representative shall suffer loss of pay for attending the meetings described in the steps of the grievance procedure.

Except for grievance meetings described in the steps of the grievance procedure, neither grievant nor any representative of grievant shall be entitled to use regular work time to process the grievance.

**Other Procedures** - The grievance procedure set forth herein shall supersede and replace any other grievance or appeal procedures otherwise available to represented employees and are deemed sufficient to satisfy procedural due process requirements for such hearings and/or appeals.

#### 21. Concerted Activities

It is agreed and understood that there will be no strike, work stoppage, slow down or refusal to perform job functions during the term of the Memorandum. However, this provision will not require an employee to cross a picket line of a sanctioned strike if such crossing might reasonably lead to direct harm to the employee.

## 22. City Rights

The City hereby retains and reserves unto itself, without limitation, all powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities conferred upon and vested in it by the Constitution of the United States, the Constitution of California, the laws of the United States, the laws of California, the

ordinances and resolutions of the City of Burlingame and shall be limited only by the express and specific terms of this Memorandum.

## 23. Effect of Agreement

This Memorandum shall supersede any prior Memoranda of Understanding, rules, regulations or ordinances in direct conflict with the provisions hereof.

#### 24. Modification

There will be no alteration or modification of any provision contained in this Memorandum without the written consent of all parties hereto.

## 25. Total Agreement

This Memorandum constitutes a full and complete agreement by the parties and contains all of the matters upon which the parties reached agreement. Any matter not contained in this Memorandum has not been agreed upon and, if raised in negotiations, was dropped by the party raising it as part of a good faith attempt to reach agreement.

#### 26. New Work

In the event the City introduces new work that the Union believes does not fall within any of the existing classifications, the City and the Union shall, upon written request, meet and confer with respect to the assignment or classification of such work.

## 27. Separability of Provisions

Should any Section, clause or provision of this Memorandum be declared illegal by final judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidation of such Section, clause or provision shall not invalidate the remaining portions hereof, and such remaining portions shall remain in full force and effect for the duration of this Memorandum. In the event of such invalidation, the parties agree to meet and confer concerning substitute provisions for provisions rendered or declared illegal.

#### **28. Term**

Except as specifically provided herein, this Memorandum shall remain in effect for those employees employed in the classifications which comprise the AFSCME bargaining unit for the period from July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2018.

For the City of Burlingame:
Date: 10 15 15
Lisa Goldman
City Manager
Lesui Loomes
Leslie Loomis Human Resources Director
Glenn Bulchumer
Glenn Berkheimer
IEDA Negotiator
Cooth-
Scott Hunter
Sr. HR Analyst

## **Exhibit A - Salaries**

# EXHIBIT A: CITY OF BURLINGAME AFSCME 2190 EFFECTIVE THE FIRST PAYROLL PERIOD July 2015 THROUGH June 2016

The salaries listed below are estimates. Actual salary may vary slightly due to rounding at time of payroll system implementation

OT AGG						1781 (1 <u>0</u> 1886) 818	and the second
CLASS	TITLE	UNIT	A	В	C	D	E
S401	PARK MAINTENANCE LEADWORKER	MONTHLY	5451.52	5725.10	6012.14	6319.37	6637.80
		BIWEEKLY	2516.09	2642.36	2774.84	2916.63	3063.60
	amorti ser u notan û regayor ja malê	HRLY.RATE	31.45	33.03	34.69	36.46	38.30
S403	GROUNDS EQUIP.REPAIR WORKER	MONTHLY	4940.23	5173.45	5429.09	5695.95	5980.75
		BIWEEKLY	2280.11	2387.75	2505.74	2628.90	2760.35
		HRLY.RATE	28.50	29.85	31.32	32.86	34.50
S404	IRRIGATION REPAIR SPECIALIST	MONTHLY	4940.23	5173.45	5429.09	5695.95	5980.75
		BIWEEKLY	2280.11	2387.75	2505.74	2628.90	2760.35
		HRLY.RATE	28.50	29.85	31.32	32.86	34.50
S405	TREE LEADWORKER	MONTHLY	5451.52	5725.10	6012.14	6319.37	6637.80
		BIWEEKLY	2516.09	2642.36	2774.84	2916.63	3063.60
		HRLY.RATE	31.45	33.03	34.69	36.46	38.30
S406	PARK MAINTENANCE WORKER II	MONTHLY	4662.16	4917.80	5148.78	5397.70	5664.56
		BIWEEKLY	2151.77	2269.76	2376.36	2491.25	2614.41
		HRLY.RATE	26.90	28.37	29.70	31.14	32.68
S407	PARK MAINTENANCE WORKER I	MONTHLY	4453.61	4662.16	4917.80	5148.78	5397.70
		BIWEEKLY	2055.51	2151.77	2269.76	2376.36	2491.25
		HRLY.RATE	25.69	26.90	28.37	29.70	31.14
S409	TREE MAINTENANCE WORKER	MONTHLY	4774.28	5045.63	5276.60	5534.49	5805.83
		BIWEEKLY	2203.52	2328.75	2435.36	2554.38	2679.62
		HRLY.RATE	27.54	29.11	30.44	31.93	33.50
S411	S411 TREE WORKER	MONTHLY	4929.02	5162.24	5420.12	5689.22	5976.26
		BIWEEKLY	2274.93	2382.57	2501.60	2625.80	2758.28
		HRLY.RATE	28.44	29.78	31.27	32.82	34.48
S501	WATER MAINTENANCE LEADWORKER	MONTHLY	5451.52	5725.10	6012.14	6319.37	6637.80
		BIWEEKLY	2516.09	2642.36	2774.84	2916.63	3063.60
		HRLY.RATE	31.45	33.03	34.69	36.46	38.30
S502	WATER METER REPAIRER	MONTHLY	4704.77	4931.26	5168.96	5424.61	5695.95

		BIWEEKLY	2171.43	2275.97	2385.68	2503.67	2628.90
		HRLY.RATE	27.14	28.45	29.82	31.30	32.86
S503	WATER MAINTENANCE WORKER	MONTHLY	4662.16	4917.80	5148.78	5397.70	5664.56
2000	TO THE REAL PROPERTY.	BIWEEKLY	2151.77	2269.76	2376.36	2491.25	2614.41
		HRLY.RATE	26.90	28.37	29.70	31.14	32.68
S504	WATER METER READER	MONTHLY	4455.85	4704.77	4931.26	5168.96	5424.61
		BIWEEKLY	2056.55	2171.43	2275.97	2385.68	2503.67
		HRLY.RATE	25.71	27.14	28.45	29.82	31.30
S505	WATER SERVICE & OPERATIONS TECH	MONTHLY	5451.52	5725.10	6012.14	6319.37	6637.80
		BIWEEKLY	2516.09	2642.36	2774.84	2916.63	3063.60
		HRLY.RATE	31.45	33.03	34.69	36.46	38.30
S507	WATER QUALITY AND METER TECH	MONTHLY	4917.80	5166.72	5422.37	5695.95	5980.75
		BIWEEKLY	2269.76	2384.64	2502.63	2628.90	2760.35
		HRLY.RATE	28.37	29.81	31.28	32.86	34.50
S508	WATER QUAL&METER LEAD WORKER	MONTHLY	5451.52	5725.10	6012.14	6319.37	6637.80
		BIWEEKLY	2516.09	2642.36	2774.84	2916.63	3063.60
		HRLY.RATE	31.45	33.03	34.69	36.46	38.30
S601	STREET & SEWER LEADWORKER	MONTHLY	5451.52	5725.10	6012.14	6319.37	6637.80
		BIWEEKLY	2516.09	2642.36	2774.84	2916.63	3063.60
		HRLY.RATE	31.45	33.03	34.69	36.46	38.30
S602	TRAFFIC SIGN & PAINT LEADWORKER	MONTHLY	5451.52	5725.10	6012.14	6319.37	6637.80
		BIWEEKLY	2516.09	2642.36	2774.84	2916.63	3063.60
		HRLY.RATE	31.45	33.03	34.69	36.46	38.30
S603	CCTV LEADWORKER	MONTHLY	5451.52	5725.10	6012.14	6319.37	6637.80
		BIWEEKLY	2516.09	2642.36	2774.84	2916.63	3063.60
		HRLY.RATE	31.45	33.03	34.69	36.46	38.30
S604	STREET & SEWER MAINT.WORKER	MONTHLY	4662.16	4917.80	5148.78	5397.70	5664.56
		BIWEEKLY	2151.77	2269.76	2376.36	2491.25	2614.41
		HRLY.RATE	26.90	28.37	29.70	31.14	32.68
S605	LABORER	MONTHLY	4437.91	4662.16	4917.80	5148.78	5397.70
		BIWEEKLY	2048.27	2151.77	2269.76	2376.36	2491.25
		HRLY.RATE	25.60	26.90	28.37	29.70	31.14
S606	MAINTENANCE ELECTRICIAN	MONTHLY	6086.15	6388.88	6714.05	7048.18	7406.98
		BIWEEKLY	2808.99	2948.72	3098.79	3253.01	3418.61
		HRLY.RATE	35.11	36.86	38.73	40.66	42.73
S607	AUTOMOTIVE MECHANIC	MONTHLY	5429.09	5695.95	5980.75	6279.00	6601.92
		BIWEEKLY	2505.74	2628.90		2898.00	3047.04

				HRLY.RATE	31.32	32.86	34.50	36.23	38.09	
S610	PUMP STATION LEAD	OWORKER		MONTHLY	5451.52	5725.10	6012.14	6319.37	6637.80	
				BIWEEKLY	2516.09	2642.36	2774.84	2916.63	3063.60	
				HRLY.RATE	31.45	33.03	34.69	36.46	38.30	
S703	FACILITIES MAINTER	NANCE WOR	KER	MONTHLY	4962.65	5220.54	5444.79	5725.10	6003.17	
				BIWEEKLY	2290.46	2409.48	2512.98	2642.36	2770.70	
				HRLY.RATE	28.63	30.12	31.41	33.03	34.63	
S704	FACILITIES LEADWO	ORKER		MONTHLY	5451.52	5725.10	6012.14	6319.37	6637.80	
				BIWEEKLY	2516.09	2642.36	2774.84	2916.63	3063.60	
				HRLY.RATE	31.45	33.03	34.69	36.46	38.30	
S704	FACILITIES LEADWO	DRKER		MONTHLY BIWEEKLY	5451.52 2516.09	5725.10 2642.36	6012.14 2774.84	6319.37 2916.63	6637.80 3063.60	)

#### CITY OF BURLINGAME AFSCME 2190 EFFECTIVE 07/01/2016

The salaries listed below are estimates. Actual salary may vary slightly due to rounding at time of payroll system implementation

CLASS	TITLE	UNIT	A	В	C	<b>D</b>	E
S401	PARK MAINTENANCE LEADWORKER	MONTHLY	5615.22	5897.78	6191.54	6509.98	6837.38
		BIWEEKLY	2591.64	2722.05	2857.64	3004.61	3155.72
		HRLY.RATE	32.4	34.03	35.72	37.56	39.45
S403	GROUNDS EQUIPMENT REPAIR WORKER	MONTHLY	5088.23	5328.18	5592.8	5866.38	6160.15
		BIWEEKLY	2348.42	2459.16	2581.29	2707.56	2843.15
		HRLY.RATE	29.36	30.74	32.27	33.84	35.54
S404	IRRIGATION REPAIR SPECIALIST	MONTHLY	5088.23	5328.18	5592.8	5866.38	6160.15
		BIWEEKLY	2348.42	2459.16	2581.29	2707.56	2843.15
		HRLY.RATE	29.36	30.74	32.27	33.84	35.54
S405	TREE LEADWORKER	MONTHLY	5615.22	5897.78	6191.54	6509.98	6837.38
		BIWEEKLY	2591.64	2722.05	2857.64	3004.61	3155.72
		HRLY.RATE	32.4	34.03	35.72	37.56	39.45
S406	PARK MAINTENANCE WORKER II	MONTHLY	4801.19	5065.81	5303.51	5559.16	5834.99
		BIWEEKLY	2215.94	2338.07	2447.78	2565.77	2693.07
		HRLY.RATE	27.7	29.23	30.6	32.07	33.66
S407	PARK MAINTENANCE WORKER I	MONTHLY	4588.16	4801.19	5065.81	5303.51	5559.16
		BIWEEKLY	2117.61	2215.94	2338.07	2447.78	2565.77
		HRLY.RATE	26.47	27.7	29.23	30.6	32.07
S409	TREE MAINTENANCE WORKER	MONTHLY	4917.8	5198.12	5435.82	5700.44	5980.75
		BIWEEKLY	2269.76	2399.13	2508.84	2630.97	2760.35
		HRLY.RATE	28.37	29.99	31.36	32.89	34.5
S411	TREE WORKER	MONTHLY	5077.02	5316.97	5583.83	5859.65	6155.66
		BIWEEKLY	2343.24	2453.99	2577.15	2704.46	2841.08
		HRLY.RATE	29.29	30.67	32.21	33.81	35.51
S501	WATER MAINTENANCE LEADWORKER	MONTHLY	5615.22	5897.78	6191.54	6509.98	6837.38
		BIWEEKLY	2591.64	2722.05	2857.64	3004.61	3155.72
		HRLY.RATE	32.4	34.03	35.72	37.56	39.45
S502	WATER METER REPAIRER	MONTHLY	4846.04	5079.26	5323.7	5588.31	5866.38
		BIWEEKLY	2236.64	2344.28	2457.09	2579.22	2707.56
		HRLY.RATE	27.96	29.3	30.71	32.24	33.84
S503	WATER MAINTENANCE WORKER	MONTHLY	4801.19	5065.81	5303.51	5559.16	5834.99
		BIWEEKLY	2215.94	2338.07	2447.78	2565.77	2693.07
		HRLY.RATE	27.7	29.23	30.6	32.07	33.66

S504	WATER METER READER	MONTHLY	4590.4	4846.04	5079.26	5323.7	5588.31
		BIWEEKLY	2118.65	2236.64	2344.28	2457.09	2579.22
		HRLY.RATE	26.48	27.96	29.3	30.71	32.24
S505	WATER SERV.& OPERATIONS TECH.	MONTHLY	5615.22	5897.78	6191.54	6509.98	6837.38
5505	mindred and a distantion of Edition	BIWEEKLY	2591.64	2722.05	2857.64	3004.61	3155.72
		HRLY.RATE	32.4	34.03	35.72	37.56	39.45
S507	WATER QUALITY AND METER TECH.	MONTHLY	5065.81	5321.45	5586.07	5866.38	(1(0.15
3307	WATER QUALITY AND METER TECH.	BIWEEKLY	2338.07	2456.06	2578.19	2707.56	6160.15
		HRLY.RATE	29.23	30.7	32.23		2843.15
		IIKLT.KATE	29.23	30.7	34.23	33.84	35.54
S508	WATER QUAL. & METER LEAD WORKER	MONTHLY	5615.22	5897.78	6191.54	6509.98	6837.38
		BIWEEKLY	2591.64	2722.05	2857.64	3004.61	3155.72
		HRLY.RATE	32.4	34.03	35.72	37.56	39.45
							331.10
S601	STREET & SEWER LEADWORKER	MONTHLY	5615.22	5897.78	6191.54	6509.98	6837.38
		BIWEEKLY	2591.64	2722.05	2857.64	3004.61	3155.72
		HRLY.RATE	32.4	34.03	35.72	37.56	39.45
S602	TRAFFIC SIGN & PAINT LEADWORKER	MONTHLY	5615.22	5897.78	6191.54	6509.98	6837.38
		BIWEEKLY	2591.64	2722.05	2857.64	3004.61	3155.72
		HRLY.RATE	32.4	34.03	35.72	37.56	39.45
S603	CCTV LEADWORKER	MONTHLY	5615.22	5897.78	6191.54	6509.98	6837.38
3003	CCIVELADWORKER	BIWEEKLY	2591.64	2722.05	2857.64	3004.61	3155.72
		HRLY.RATE	32.4	34.03	35.72	37.56	39.45
		MONTHIN	4001.10	5065.01	5202.51	5550.16	5004.00
S604	STREET & SEWER MAINT.WORKER	MONTHLY	4801.19	5065.81	5303.51	5559.16	5834.99
		BIWEEKLY	2215.94	2338.07	2447.78	2565.77	2693.07
		HRLY.RATE	27.7	29.23	30.6	32.07	33.66
S605	LABORER	MONTHLY	4570.22	4801.19	5065.81	5303.51	5559.16
		BIWEEKLY	2109.33	2215.94	2338.07	2447.78	2565.77
		HRLY.RATE	26.37	27.7	29.23	30.6	32.07
S606	MAINTENANCE ELECTRICIAN	MONTHLY	6267.79	6579.5	6915.87	7258.97	7628.99
		<b>BIWEEKLY</b>	2892.83	3036.69	3191.94	3350.3	3521.07
		HRLY.RATE	36.16	37.96	39.9	41.88	44.01
S607	AUTOMOTIVE MECHANIC	MONTHLY	5592.8	5866.38	6160.15	6467.37	6799.26
3007	AUTOMOTIVE MECHANIC	BIWEEKLY	2581.29		2843.15	2984.94	3138.12
		HRLY.RATE	32.27	33.84	35.54	37.31	39.23
S610	PUMP STATION LEADWORKER	MONTHLY	5615.22	5897.78	6191.54	6509.98	6837.38
		BIWEEKLY	2591.64	2722.05	2857.64	3004.61	3155.72
		HRLY.RATE	32.4	34.03	35.72	37.56	39.45
S703	FACILITIES MAINTENANCE WORKER	MONTHLY	5110.66	5377.52	5608.49	5897.78	6182.57
5,05		BIWEEKLY	2358.77			2722.05	2853.5
		UDIALDATE	00.40	21.00	20.26	21.02	35.67
		HRLY.RATE	29.48	31.02	32.36	34.03	

S704	FACILITIES LEADWORKER	MONTHLY	5615.22	5897.78	6191.54	6509.98	6837.38
		BIWEEKLY	2591.64	2722.05	2857.64	3004.61	3155.72
		HRLY.RATE	32.4	34.03	35.72	37.56	39.45

#### CITY OF BURLINGAME AFSCME 2190 EFFECTIVE 07/01/2017

The salaries listed below are estimates. Actual salary may vary slightly due to rounding at time of payroll system implementation

CLA	SS TITLE	UNIT	A	В	C	D	E	
~				<b>507100</b>				
S401	PARK MAINTENANCE LEADWORKER	MONTHLY	5783.41	6074.93	6377.67	6705.08	7041.45	
		BIWEEKLY	2669.27	2803.82	2943.54	3094.65	3249.90	
		HRLY.RATE	33.37	35.05	36.79	38.68	40.62	
S403	GROUNDS EQUIP. REPAIR WORKER	MONTHLY	5240.72	5487.40	5760.98	6041.30	6344.03	
2,02		BIWEEKLY	2418.80	2532.65	2658.92	2788.29	2928.02	
		HRLY.RATE	30.23	31.66	33.24	34.85	36.60	
	1							
S404	IRRIGATION REPAIR SPECIALIST	MONTHLY	5240.72	5487.40	5760.98	6041.30	6344.03	
		BIWEEKLY	2418.80	2532.65	2658.92	2788.29	2928.02	
		HRLY.RATE	30.23	31.66	33.24	34.85	36.60	
S405	TREE LEADWORKER	MONTHLY	5783.41	6074.93	6377.67	6705.08	7041.45	
5405	TREE EEAD WORKER	BIWEEKLY	2669.27	2803.82	2943.54	3094.65	3249.90	
		HRLY.RATE	33.37	35.05	36.79	38.68	40.62	
		TIKET.KATE	33.37	33.03	30.79	30.00	40.02	
S406	PARK MAINTENANCE WORKER II	MONTHLY	4944.71	5218.30	5462.73	5725.10	6009.90	
		BIWEEKLY	2282.18	2408.45	2521.26	2642.36	2773.80	
		HRLY.RATE	28.53	30.11	31.52	33.03	34.67	
S407	PARK MAINTENANCE WORKER I	MONTHLY	4724.95	4944.71	5218.30	5460.72	5705 10	
3407	FARR MAINTENANCE WORKERT	BIWEEKLY	2180.75	2282.18	2408.45	5462.73 2521.26	5725.10 2642.36	
		HRLY.RATE	27.26	28.53	30.11			
		HKLI.KATE	27.20	20.33	30.11	31.52	33.03	
S409	TREE MAINTENANCE WORKER	MONTHLY	5065.81	5355.09	5599.52	5870.87	6160.15	
		BIWEEKLY	2338.07	2471.58	2584.40	2709.63	2843.15	
		HRLY.RATE	29.23	30.89	32.30	33.87	35.54	
S411	TREE WORKER	MONTHLY	5229.51	5476.19	5752.01	6034.57	6339.55	
		BIWEEKLY	2413.62	2527.47	2654.78	2785.19	2925.95	
		HRLY.RATE	30.17		33.18	34.81	36.57	
					222	2 1.01	30107	
S501	WATER MAINT. LEADWORKER	MONTHLY	5783.41	6074.93	6377.67	6705.08	7041.45	
		BIWEEKLY	2669.27	2803.82	2943.54	3094.65	3249.90	
		HRLY.RATE	33.37	35.05	36.79	38.68	40.62	
S502	WATER METER REPAIRER	MONTHLY	4991.81	5231.75	5482.91	5756.50	6041.30	
3302	WALLA WILLEN REPAIRER	BIWEEKLY	2303.91		2530.58	2656.85	2788.29	
		HRLY.RATE	28.80		31.63		34.85	
		HKLI KAIE	20.00	30.10	31.03	33.21	34.83	

AFSCME 2190

5	S503	WATER MAINTENANCE WORKER	MONTHLY	4944.71	5218.30	5462.73	5725.10	6009.90
			BIWEEKLY	2282.18	2408.45	2521.26	2642.36	2773.80
			HRLY.RATE	28.53	30.11	31.52	33.03	34.67
5	S504	WATER METER READER	MONTHLY	4727.19	4991.81	5231.75	5482.91	5756.50
			BIWEEKLY	2181.78	2303.91	2414.66	2530.58	2656.85
			HRLY.RATE	27.27	28.80	30.18	31.63	33.21
5	S505	WATER SERV. & OPERATIONS TECH.	MONTHLY	5783.41	6074.93	6377.67	6705.08	7041.45
			BIWEEKLY	2669.27	2803.82	2943.54	3094.65	3249.90
			HRLY.RATE	33.37	35.05	36.79	38.68	40.62
,	S507	WATER QUAL. & METER TECHNICIAN	MONTHLY	5218.30	5480.67	5754.26	6041.30	6344.03
			<b>BIWEEKLY</b>	2408.45	2529.54	2655.81	2788.29	2928.02
			HRLY.RATE	30.11	31.62	33.20	34.85	36.60
	S508	WTR QUAL & METER LEAD WORKER	MONTHLY	5783.41	6074.93	6377.67	6705.08	7041.45
			BIWEEKLY	2669.27	2803.82	2943.54	3094.65	3249.90
			HRLY.RATE	33.37	35.05	36.79	38.68	40.62
	S601	STREET & SEWER LEADWORKER	MONTHLY	5783.41	6074.93	6377.67	6705.08	7041.45
			BIWEEKLY	2669.27	2803.82	2943.54	3094.65	3249.90
			HRLY.RATE	33.37	35.05	36.79	38.68	40.62
	S602	TRAF. SIGN & PAINT LEADWORKER	MONTHLY	5783.41	6074.93	6377.67	6705.08	7041.45
			BIWEEKLY	2669.27	2803.82	2943.54	3094.65	3249.90
			HRLY.RATE	33.37	35.05	36.79	38.68	40.62
	S603	CCTV LEADWORKER	MONTHLY	5783.41	6074.93	6377.67	6705.08	7041.45
			BIWEEKLY	2669.27	2803.82	2943.54	3094.65	3249.90
			HRLY.RATE	33.37	35.05	36.79	38.68	40.62
	S604	STREET & SEWER MAINT. WORKER	MONTHLY	4944.71	5218.30	5462.73	5725.10	6009.90
			BIWEEKLY	2282.18	2408.45	2521.26	2642.36	2773.80
			HRLY.RATE	28.53	30.11	31.52	33.03	34.67
	S605	LABORER	MONTHLY	4707.01	4944.71	5218.30	5462.73	5725.10
			BIWEEKLY	2172.47	2282.18	2408.45	2521.26	2642.36
			HRLY.RATE	27.16	28.53	30.11	31.52	33.03
	S606	MAINTENANCE ELECTRICIAN	MONTHLY	6456.16	6776.84	7124.42	7476.50	7857.72
			BIWEEKLY	2979.77		3288.20	3450.69	3626.64
			HRLY.RATE	37.25	39.10	41.10	43.13	45.33
	S607	AUTOMOTIVE MECHANIC	MONTHLY	5760.98	6041.30	6344.03	6662.47	7003.33
			BIWEEKLY	2658.92	2788.29	2928.02	3074.99	3232.31
			HRLY.RATE	33.24	34.85	36.60	38.44	40.40

S610	PUMP STATIO	N LEADWORK	ER	MONTHLY	5783.41	6074.93	6377.67	6705.08	7041.45
				BIWEEKLY	2669.27	2803.82	2943.54	3094.65	3249.90
				HRLY.RATE	33.37	35.05	36.79	38.68	40.62
S703	FACILITIES M	IAINTENANCE	WORKER	MONTHLY	5263.15	5538.98	5776.68	6074.93	6368.70
				BIWEEKLY	2429.15	2556.45	2666.16	2803.82	2939.40
				HRLY.RATE	30.36	31.96	33.33	35.05	36.74
S704	FACILITIES L	EADWORKER		MONTHLY	5783.41	6074.93	6377.67	6705.08	7041.45
				BIWEEKLY	2669.27	2803.82	2943.54	3094.65	3249.90
				HRLY.RATE	33.37	35.05	36.79	38.68	40.62

1

# **Exhibit B - Alternative Work Schedule**

# **POLICY**

The Alternative Work Schedule Policy provides an opportunity for eligible employees to work 40-hour workweeks in less than the traditional 5 days per week. Alternative work schedules will be offered to the extent the practice does not negatively impact business operations or service to the community. Additionally, alternative work schedules will be offered in a way that will not materially increase the costs of serving the community of Burlingame. If a current employee is working a traditional 5/40-work week and his/her individual circumstance is not conducive to an alternative work schedule, the supervisor and manager will assess if the employee can keep his/her traditional 5/40 schedule. Such an assessment will involve looking at the needs of the City, public, employee and workgroup.

#### **ELIGIBILITY**

The policy applies to full-time, permanent employees who shifts are traditionally scheduled Monday through Friday in the time period from 7AM - 7PM. Sworn public safety employees that are on shift or who work in administrative capacities are not eligible to participate in the Alternative Work Schedule Policy unless otherwise approved by the Police or Fire Chief.

# **WORK SCHEDULE**

The standard alternative work schedule under this policy is referred to as a 9/80 work schedule. This provides that employees work nine (9) hours per day, four (4) days per week, plus one eight (8) hour day once every two weeks. If approved by the City Manager, departments may implement other alternative work schedules such as a 4/10.

# **WORK WEEK**

The standard workweek is defined as forty (40) hours per week and will start at 12:01 pm on Friday.

# **HOLIDAYS**

Holidays will retain their value of eight (8) hours per day. For example, if a holiday falls on what would otherwise be a nine (9) hour workday, the employee must either use one (1) hour of vacation, administrative or

floating holiday leave to be compensated for the additional hour. The employee, with the Department Head's approval, may also elect to work one additional hour another day within the workweek to make-up for this hour.

## **HOURS OF OPERATION**

The City intends to expand the hours of operation for City facilities. However, prior to expanding hours to the public, the City will implement the pilot program; assess if it will be an on-going plan; and the evaluate options around expanding hours of operation. Such evaluation is expected to take place during the first six (6) months of the program.

#### **PROGRAM CRITERIA:**

The success of this program is based on the premise that City services will be maintained and will not deteriorate due to the implementation of an alternative work program. Prior to implementing such a program, each department will be required to submit standards that will be used to measure the program impacts. Such standards should include some measurement of:

- ✓ Productivity
- ✓ Quality of Service and Impact on Key-Indicators regarding Service
- ✓ Sick Leave Usage
- Complaints from the public or other City departments regarding staff unavailability
- ✓ If service hours are extended into the evening, usage during the later hours
- ✓ Proportion of work that has either fallen to others (not on alternative work schedule) or not being done in a timely manner
- ✓ Economic Impact including increase in overtime
- ✓ Employee Morale

Additionally, when designing a program for a specific unit or division, the following will need to be addressed:

- ✓ Adequate phone and counter coverage to provide services
- ✓ Cross-training to ensure all City services are maintained each day
- ✓ Sufficient supervision of the work group
- ✓ Coverage during peak vacation seasons
- ✓ Maintenance of services that require interdepartmental support
- ✓ Employee safety

All employees that opt to participate in a pilot program will be required to submit an Alternative Work Schedule Agreement. Pilot programs will be for no more than six (6) months and are subject to department head approval. The pilot program is not subject to the City's grievance procedure.

DATE:

**Date** 

TO:

**Employee Name, Employee Job Title** 

FROM:

**DH Name, Director Title** 

**SUBJECT:** 

**Alternative Work Schedule Agreement** 

This agreement constitutes a \_\_\_\_\_month trial program for an alternative work schedule that will be in effect from \_\_\_\_\_ to \_\_\_\_. However, as the Department Head, I reserve the right to discontinue the flex work schedule during this period time with a minimum of ten (10) days advanced notification Additionally, the City may make temporary adjustments to your alternative work schedule due to work demands. The City will give you a minimum of five (5) days advanced notification.

**1.** Effective \_\_\_\_\_\_, your new work schedule will be as follows:

#### Week #1 (sample – use your actual)

Monday through Thursday (7:30 a.m. -5:00 p.m.) with a 1/2 hour lunch break. Friday (8:00 a.m. -5:00 p.m.), with a 1 hour lunch break. **Total Work Hours:** 44

## Week #2 (sample - use your actual)

Monday through Thursday (7:30 a.m. -5:00 p.m.) with a 1/2 hour lunch break. Friday (scheduled 9/80 day off). **Total Work Hours: 36** 

- 2. Holidays: If a holiday falls on your scheduled 9/80 day off, you will receive 8 hours of floating holiday. The days will be referred to as AWS Floater Days. All AWS floater days accrued in a calendar year must be used no later than January 31 of the following calendar year. You will not be allowed to carry-over, bank or accrue the AWS floater days. There is no cash value attached to an AWS floater day. You are not entitled to payment for any AWS floater days unused at the time of resignation or termination of City employment.
- **3. Other Leave Days Affected by 9/80 Day Off:** If you take a day of vacation leave, sick leave, administrative leave or other benefit leave, you must use the number of hours which corresponds to your alternative work schedule. As an example, you will use 9 hours of sick leave if you are absent due to illness on a scheduled 9-hour workday and 8 hours of sick leave if you are absent due to illness on a scheduled 8-hour workday.
- **4. Vacation and Sick Leave Accrual:** You will continue to accrue vacation leave, sick leave and other forms of leave at the rate specified in your employee MOU benefit agreement.
- **5. Temporary Work Schedule Change:** Temporary changes in your alternative work schedule must be pre-approved by the Department Head and require a minimum five (5) days advance notification. Additionally, due to work demands the Department Head may make temporary changes to your Alternative Work Schedule with a minimum five (5) days advance notice.
- **6. Vacation and Other Leave Requests:** In order to minimize the impact of reduced staffing days, every attempt should be made to plan vacations and other leaves during your four (4) day work week. Special circumstances may be granted allowing overlapping of schedules only with prior approval of the Department Head. You are highly encouraged, although not mandated to schedule dental, doctor and other personal appointments on your 9/80 day off.
- 7. Employee Request to Discontinue Flex Work Schedule: You are required to commit to the prescribed alternative work schedule agreement. If you no longer choose to continue with the agreement, you will need to request that the agreement be terminated. Such a request needs to be submitted to me in writing with a minimum of thirty (30) days prior to the desired date of change. Any early termination of the agreement is subject to my approval.
- 8. Extended Work Week: By agreeing to the Flex Work Schedule, you will be required to work one 44 hour and one 36 hour work week for a total of 80 hours in a regular two-week pay period. \*\*\*if for FLSA exempt employee, use the following As a mid-manager and member of the Mid-Management Bargaining Unit, you do not accrue overtime, and will not be additionally compensated above and beyond the work week(s) as defined in this document. Mid-Management leave will continue to be accrued and

dispersed as described in your Mid-Management MOU.\*\*\*\*if eligible for OT, use the following Overtime hours will be based on hours worked in excess of your flex-time schedule. If you are scheduled to work a 9-hour day, eligibility for overtime would not begin until after you have worked your regularly assigned 9-hour day.

- **9. Work Expectations**: You enter into this agreement knowing that there will be no modification to your workload or job expectations to accommodate an alternative work schedule. As such, if the City determines that this program is detrimental to your performance or negatively impacting job expectations, it may be terminated with a ten (10) day minimum notice.
- **10.Paychecks:** Paychecks will not be released early to employees who are off on Fridays as a result of the Alternative Work Schedules. Employees on this program are strongly encouraged to register for direct deposit. On payday, paychecks will be available on Friday morning in the employee's department.

My signature below signifies that I agree to all the listed conditions and understand that the City reserves the right to discontinue this program with ten (10) days advanced notification.

Employee Name	Date	DH Name	Date
Employee Title	• 10 • 4	DH Title	<u> </u>
Cc Personnel File			

# **Exhibit C - FMLA Policy**

#### **ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES**

CITY OF BURLINGAME
October 01, 2012 (revision)

CATEGORY: Personnel PAGE: 4.25.1

SUBJECT: Family Medical Leave Act, California Family Rights Act, Pregnancy Disability Leave, State Disability Leave, and Paid Family Leave

**POLICY:** The city shall grant family and medical leave in accordance with State Government Code Sections 12945 and 12945.2, the Federal Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA), the California Family Rights Act of 1994 (CFRA), the California Pregnancy Disability Leave Act (PDL), State Disability Insurance (SDI), Paid Family Leave (PFL) and existing city administrative or MOU procedures.

#### A. FAMILY AND MEDICAL CARE LEAVE (FMLA and CFRA)

Under state and federal law, eligible employees are entitled to up to twelve weeks of unpaid leave per year. FMLA and CFRA leave runs concurrently, with the exception that CFRA leave does not cover pregnancy disability. This leave shall not constitute a break in service for purposes of seniority, vacation accrual, etc.

# 1. Employee Eligibility

To be eligible for family and medical leave benefits, an employee must:

- Have worked for the City for a total of at least 12 months
- Have actually worked at least 1,250 hours over the previous 12 months

#### 2. Amount of Leave Available

Eligible employees may receive up to a total of 12 work weeks of unpaid leave during any 12-month period. The 12-month period is measured backward from the date an employee last used any FMLA leave. As a result, the amount of leave an employee is entitled to take depends on how much time the employee has already taken during the 12-months prior to the request.

#### 3. Intermittent Leave and Minimum Duration of Leave

If required by a health care provider, employees may take family and medical leave intermittently (in blocks of time interspersed during work time), or by reducing their normal weekly or daily work schedule. Intermittent leave can be taken in no less than one-hour increments and will be counted toward the annual 12 week allotment.

If leave is requested for the birth, adoption or foster care placement of a child of the employee, leave must be concluded within one year of the birth or placement. In addition, the basic minimum duration of such leave is two weeks, except that on no more than two occasions, an employee may use leave in a one-day minimum increment.

#### 4. Reasons for Leave

Leave may only be used for one or more of the following reasons:

- For the birth or placement of a child with the employee for adoption or foster care
- To care for a spouse (including registered domestic partner), child, or parent with a serious health condition
- To care for a newborn child (birth 12 months of age)
- When the employee is unable to perform the functions of his or her position because of a "serious health condition" as defined herein.

## 5. Spouses Both Employed by the City

The aggregate number of work weeks of leave to which City employees who are spouses may be entitled for reasons of birth or placement for adoption or foster care is limited to 12 work weeks during the 12-month period defined herein.

#### 6. Notice of Need for Leave

An employee needing family and medical leave is required to provide:

- 30-day advance notice when the need for the leave is foreseeable (e.g., for childbirth or elective surgery). If an employee fails to give 30 days notice for a foreseeable leave with no reasonable excuse for the delay, the leave may be denied until 30 days after the employee provides notice.
- When the need for leave is unforeseen, an employee must give notice as soon as possible.
- If the City determines that the employee's notice is inadequate or the employee knew about the need for leave in advance of the time requested, the City may delay the start of the leave until the City can cover the position with a replacement.

#### 7. Medical Certification

Content and Due Date of Certification: An employee who requests leave for his or her own serious health condition, or to care for a child, parent or spouse who has a serious health condition, must provide the City written certification from the health care provider of the individual requiring care within 15 days after requesting leave.

- If the leave is requested because of the employee's own serious health condition, the certification must include a statement that the employee is unable to work at all or is unable to perform the essential functions of his/her position.
- If the employee requests intermittent leave, or on a reduced schedule to care for an immediate family member with a serious health condition, the employee must provide medical certification that such leave is "medically necessary." "Medically necessary" means that there is a medical need for the leave and that the leave can best be accomplished through an intermittent or reduced leave schedule.

Second and Third Opinions: If the City has reason to doubt the validity of a certification, the City may require a medical opinion of a second health care provider chosen and paid for by the City. If the second opinion is different from the first, the City may require the opinion of a third provider jointly approved by the City and the employee, and paid for by the City. The opinion of the third provider will be binding.

Consequences of Failure to Provide Adequate or Timely Certification: If the employee provides an incomplete certification, the employee will be given a reasonable time to provide a complete certification. If the employee fails to provide a medical certification within 15 days of the employee's request for leave, the City may delay the start time for taking the leave until the required certification is provided.

#### Re-certification:

- Periodic Re-certification: The City may require the employee to periodically report on his or her status and intent to return to work. An employee who requests an extension of approved leave will be required to provide a new certification.
- Fitness for Duty Certification: As a condition of reinstatement of an employee whose leave was due to the employee's own serious health condition, the employee must

obtain and present a fitness-for-duty certification from the health care provider that the employee is able to return to work. Failure to provide such certification will result in denial of reinstatement.

#### 8. Use of Accrued Paid Leaves

Family and medical leave is unpaid, except that where an employee has accrued paid leave balances, they are required to use that accrued leave time (i.e., accrued sick leave, family sick leave, vacation, floating holiday, or administrative leave) during the FMLA leave. When such accrued leave is exhausted, the employee is then entitled to take unpaid leave for the remainder of the leave period. At the employee's discretion, accumulated compensatory time may also be taken during the period of the leave.

# 9. Concurrent Use of Family and Medical Leave with Other Leaves

The City may designate any non-family and medical leave, such as workers' compensation, sick, or vacation leave, to run concurrently with family and medical leave whenever the non-family and medical leave is also for a family and medical leave purpose.

The City integrates family and medical leave with workers' compensation leave whenever an employee is absent from the work place for 30 days or more due to an industrial injury or illness. As required by law, the City will not run family and medical leave concurrently with Labor Code section 4850 leave (sworn employee temporary disability workers' compensation leave).

# 10. Benefits During Leave

An employee will receive any group health insurance coverage that was provided before the leave on the same terms as if the employee had continued to work during the leave, up to a maximum of 12 work weeks.

Employee contributions for group health insurance coverage, if any, will be required either through payroll deduction or by direct payment to the City or insurance provider. The method of payment will be established in conjunction with the employee in writing at the beginning of the leave. The amount of an employee's contribution is subject to any changes in rates that occur while the employee is on leave.

If the City pays the employee's contribution in order to avoid cancellation of coverage, the employee will be required to reimburse the employer on a payroll deduction schedule upon return from leave. The employee will be required to sign a written

statement at the beginning of the leave period to authorize the payroll deduction for delinquent payments.

If the employee fails to return from unpaid family and medical leave for reasons other than: 1) the continuation of a serious health condition of the employee or his or her covered family member; or 2) circumstances beyond the employee's control, the City may seek reimbursement from the employee for the portion of the premiums the City paid on behalf of the employee during the leave period.

#### 11. Sick and Vacation Leave Accrual

Sick leave and vacation leave do not accrue while an employee is on unpaid leave.

#### 12. Job Reinstatement

An employee will be reinstated to his or her previous position, or to an equivalent job with equivalent pay, benefits, and other employment terms and conditions if all of the following conditions are met: 1) the employee has been on leave for no more than the maximum family and medical leave period; and 2) the employee provides the department a written certification from a health care provider that the employee is fit for duty.

If an employee is returning from family and medical leave taken for his or her own serious health condition, but is unable to perform the essential functions of his or her job because of a physical or mental disability, the City will begin an interactive process to determine whether the City can reasonably accommodate the employee without undue hardship.

However, an employee returning from family and medical leave has no greater right to reinstatement, benefits, and other conditions of employment than if he/she had been continuously employed rather than on leave.

# 13. Required Forms

Employees must complete the following forms in order to receive leave under this policy:

- a. "Request for Family or Medical Leave Form" prepared by the City to be eligible for leave. (Note: this form may not be required if the City designates an employee's leave to run concurrently with FMLA/CFRA leave.)
- b. "Certification of Physician or Practitioner Form" prepared by the City for medical certification—either for the employee's

- own serious health condition or for the serious health condition of a child, parent or spouse;
- c. Fitness-for-duty to return from leave certification from doctor

#### **B. MILITARY FAMILY LEAVE ENTITLEMENTS**

- Military Caregiver Leave: An eligible employee who is a spouse, son, daughter, parent, or next of kin of a covered servicemember with a serious injury or illness will be granted up to a total of 26 workweeks of unpaid leave during a single 12month period to care for the servicemember. servicemember is a current member of the Armed Forces, including a member of the National Guard or Reserves, who is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy, or is otherwise in outpatient status, or is otherwise on the temporary disability retired list, for a serious injury or illness. A serious injury or illness is one that was incurred by a servicemember in the line of duty on active duty that may render the servicemember medically unfit to perform the duties of his or her office, grade, rank, or rating. The "single 12-month period" for leave to care for a covered servicemember with a serious injury or illness begins on the first day the employee takes leave for this reason and ends 12 months later. An eligible employee is limited to a combined total of 26 workweeks of leave for any FMLAqualifying reason during the single 12-month period. Only 12 of the 26 weeks total may be for a FMLA-qualifying reason other than to care for a covered servicemember.
- 2. Qualifying Exigency Leave: An eligible employee will be granted up to a total of 12 workweeks of unpaid leave during a 12-month period for qualifying exigencies arising out of the fact that the employee's spouse, son, daughter or parent is on active duty, or has been notified of an impending call or order to active duty, in support of a contingency operation. Qualifying Exigency Leave is available to a family member of a military member in the National Guard or Reserves; it does not extend to family members of military members in the Regular Armed Forces.
- **3.** Military Caregiver Leave and Qualifying Exigency Leave will be administered in accordance with applicable federal and state regulations

#### C. PREGNANCY DISABILITY LEAVE

An employee who is disabled because of pregnancy, childbirth, or a related medical condition is entitled to an unpaid pregnancy disability leave for up to four months.

1. Notice & Certification Requirements Requests for pregnancy disability leave must be submitted in writing and must be approved by the employee's supervisor or department director before the leave begins. The request must be supported by a written certification from the attending physician that the employee is disabled from working by pregnancy, childbirth or a related medical condition. The certification must state the expected duration of the disability and the expected date of return to work. (The City's "Request for Family or Medical Leave Form" and "Certification of Physician or Practitioner Form" should be used for this purpose.)

All leaves must be confirmed in writing, have an agreed-upon specific date of return, and be submitted to the department director prior to being taken. Requests for an extension of leave must be submitted in writing to the department director prior to the agreed date of return and must be supported by a written certification of the attending physician that the employee continues to be disabled by pregnancy, childbirth, or a related medical condition. The maximum pregnancy disability leave is four months.

- 2. Compensation During Leave Pregnancy disability leaves are without pay. However, where an employee has accrued paid leave balances, the employee must first use their accrued sick leave, vacation leave, and then any other accrued paid time off during the period of the leave, and when such leaves are exhausted, may take unpaid time for the remainder of the leave.
- 3. Benefits During Leave An employee on pregnancy disability leave will receive any group health insurance coverage that was provided before the leave on the same terms as provided to other employees who become disabled off-duty, as if the employee had continued to work, if: 1) the employee is eligible for concurrent family medical leave; and 2) the employee has not already exhausted this 12-week group health insurance coverage benefit in the current family medical leave eligibility period. The City may recover premiums it paid to maintain health coverage, as provided by the family and medical leave laws, if an employee does not return to work following pregnancy disability leave

An employee on pregnancy disability leave, and not eligible to receive group health insurance coverage as described above, may receive health insurance coverage in conjunction with COBRA guidelines by making monthly premium payments to the City.

- **4. Sick and Vacation Leave Accrual:** Sick leave and vacation leave do not accrue while an employee is on unpaid pregnancy disability leave.
- **5. Reinstatement** Upon the expiration of pregnancy disability leave and the City's receipt of a written statement of the health care provider that the employee is fit to return to duty, the employee will be reinstated to her original or an equivalent position so long as it was not eliminated for a legitimate business reason during the leave.
  - a. If the employee's original position is no longer available, the employee will be assigned to an open position that is substantially similar in job content, status, pay, promotional opportunities, and geographic location as the employee's original position.
  - b. If upon return from leave an employee is unable to perform the essential functions of her job because of a physical or mental disability, the City will initiate an interactive process with the employee in order to identify potential reasonable accommodations.

An employee who fails to return to work after the termination of her leave loses her reinstatement rights.

# D. STATE DISABILITY INSURANCE (SDI)

Employees covered under AFSCME collective bargaining agreements are eligible for State Disability Insurance (SDI) administered by the State Employment Development's (EDD) Disability Insurance Branch. SDI benefits are payable when an employee is off work for more than 7 days due to a personal disability, which includes pregnancy disability. SDI benefits will be integrated with an employee's sick leave hours in accordance with the following procedure:

- 1. When an employee is expected to be off of work more than 7 calendar days, the Human Resources Department will supply the employee with SDI Claim forms.
- 2. The employee will need to complete his/her section of the form and have the treating doctor complete the physician section of the forms. It is the employee's responsibility to

ensure the claim forms are returned to the State in a timely fashion.

- 3. In order to avoid an undue financial hardship, the City will use available sick hours to pay the employee 100% of his/her normal compensation until the employee sends the City confirmation that SDI benefits are being paid or after being off of work for four weeks, whichever occurs first. Regardless of whether the employee is in fact collecting state disability after four weeks or not, the City will begin integration. The City will do this by estimating the State Disability Insurance benefit as published by the Employment Development Department (EDD) and reducing this amount from the employee's normal compensation. The balance will be paid using available sick hours.
- 4. The employee submits his/her first state disability check payable to the City, whereupon the City will restore the sick hours reflected in the state disability pay. To determine the sick hours to be restored, the City will divide the state disability pay by the employee's hourly rate.

Integration of sick leave with SDI will bring an employee to his/her full pay and is not intended to give an employee additional compensation. Additionally, integration of SDI benefits and sick leave is not intended to give additional leave time under the terms of any state or federally mandated leave programs.

# E. PAID FAMILY LEAVE (PFL)

California workers who are covered by the State Disability Insurance Program (SDI) are also covered for Paid Family Leave benefits (PFL).

No more than six weeks of Paid Family Leave benefits may be paid within any 12 month period.

# 1. Employee Eligibility/Reasons for Leave

To be eligible for paid family leave benefits, an employee must need leave in order to:

- Care for a seriously ill family member a parent, spouse, child or domestic partner
- Bond with the employee's new child, the new child of the employees spouse or domestic partner, or a child in connection with the adoption or foster care placement of the child with the employee or the employee's spouse or domestic partner.

#### 2. Medical Certification

A medical certificate is required by EDD when a Paid Family Leave claim is filed to provide care for a seriously ill family member. The certificate must include a diagnosis and International Classification of Diseases code; the commencing date of the disability; the probable duration; the estimated time care is needed; and state that the serious health condition warrants care. This includes "providing psychological comfort" and arranging "third party care."

#### 3. Waiting Period

There is a seven day waiting period before benefits become effective. The City Requires the employee to use family sick leave (as appropriate) or vacation or other paid leave during the waiting period. Individuals cannot receive Paid Family Leave benefits while receiving SDI benefits for a personal disability, or workers' compensation benefits.

# Exhibit D — AGREEMENT TO MEET REGARDING CITY BUDGET



The City of Burlingame

CITY HALL • 501 PRIMROSE ROAD

**HUMAN RESOURCES** 

BURLINGAME, CA 94010

TEL: 650.558.7206

FAX: 650.342-8386

#### MEMORANDUM

DATE:

July 24, 2007

TO:

AFSCME 829 and 2190

FROM:

Deirdre Dolan, Human Resources Director

CC:

Jesus Nava, Finance Director

SUBJECT: AGREEMENT TO MEET REGARDING CITY BUDGET

This is to confirm our agreement to schedule a meeting on an annual basis with AFSCME 829 and 2190 representatives, the Finance Director, and the Human Resources Director to review and discuss the City Budget. Such meeting will be scheduled in late February or early March to correlate with the City Council Budget Strategy Setting Session. AFSCME representatives will be provided with the City of Burlingame Budget Calendar, and may contact the HR Director to schedule this meeting.

# SIDE LETTER AGREEMENT BETWEEN AFSCME LOCAL 2190 AND THE CITY OF BURLINGAME

June 5, 2014

Representatives for the City of Burlingame and representatives for American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME) Local 2190 have met and agree to modify the Memorandum of Understanding between the parties, which expires on June 30, 2015, for the following specific situation only, on a non-precedent setting basis:

#### Background

The City and AFSCME Local 2190 agreed to a "Me Too" Clause on retiree medical contributions during the last contract negotiations. The language states "If the BPOA receives a retiree medical benefit that exceeds the retiree medical benefit that has been negotiated for the current employees in AFSCME, then the City shall apply the BPOA negotiated retiree medical benefit to the employees in the bargaining unit represented by AFSCME".

The City and the Burlingame Police Officers Association negotiated a retiree medical benefit that exceeds the AFSCME retiree medical benefit.

To address this "Me Too Clause" The City and AFSCME met and agreed to amend Section 8.1.2 of AFSCME Local 2190 as follows:

Retire Medical for Employees Hired Prior to March 31, 2008 and Retire prior to January 1, 2015

Employees hired prior to March 31, 2008 who retire prior to January 1,2015 with a minimum of five (5) years of service with the City will receive a retiree medical benefit up to the actual enrollment in single, 2 party or family up to the Kaiser family rate.

Retire Medical for Employees Hired Prior to March 31, 2008 and Retire on or after January 1, 2015

Effective January 1, 2015 employees hired prior to March 31, 2008 and retire on or after January 1, 2015, who retire from the City with five (5) years of City service, will receive a retiree medical benefit as follows:

The City will contribute up to the Bay Area Region premiums for Blue Shield Access HMO Single for single retirees; Blue Shield Two-Party for retiree plus one; Kaiser Family for retiree plus two or more.

For eligible retirees who are 65 years of age or older and enrolled in Medicare, the City contribution will be equivalent to the premium for the Bay Area Region for Blue Shield

access HMO for single retirees; Blue Shield for two party, or Kaiser for family coverage, as applicable.

If the foregoing is in accordance with your understanding, please indicate your approval and acceptance in the space provided below.

Approved and Accepted:

For AFSCME Local 2190

For City of Burlingame

Leskie Loonis

Leskie Loonis

Date: 6-19-19 Date: 6-19-19